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LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

2015 was a challenging year for Hong Kong and Macau. Under the
sluggish global economy and with slowing economic growth in the
PRC, Hong Kong and Macau have been materially affected as both
are highly-open economies. In particular, being the pillar industry of
Hong Kong and Macau, the tourism industry suffered the greatest
hit. As the number of visitors to Hong Kong and Macau did not
rebound and the spending power of those who came were weaker
than the past, the retail sector which are driven by tourism in both
regions have been greatly impacted. The Group is principally engaged
in commercial property investment in Hong Kong and Macau. As
such, our tenants were inevitably faced with the same issues. During
2015, part of our tenants encountered operating difficulties due to
unfavorable economic conditions, and informed us prior to the expiry
of their leases that they will close their businesses. Since it will take
some time to identify new tenants, and under the impact of the market
downturn, such properties did not generate any revenue during such
time when they were without tenants. And a number of other tenants
requested for lower rents due to difficult operating conditions. Taken
into consideration our friendly cooperation in the past, and based
on actual market conditions, we negotiated with our tenants and
made adjustments to relevant rents. With nil income generated from
properties and downward adjustment to rents, the Group’s revenue
from properties investment for the year decreased. On the other hand,
value of Renminbi (“RMB”) plummeted due to shift in government’s
macro-economic policy in August 2015, resulting in significant
unrealized exchange losses on deposits denominated in RMB held
by the Group. For the abovementioned factors, the Group’s overall
financial performance in 2015 was weaker than expected.

Looking forward to 2016, the outlook of global economy remains
gloomy. While governments around the world have taken
corresponding measures to stimulate economies, the results are yet
to be seen. Further, Hong Kong and Macau have to deal with their
own obstacles. For Hong Kong, in addition to external pressures,
the economy is challenged by changes in local political ecology.
With different political alignments, and the rise of localism and
radicalism, social harmony no longer exists. As internal conflicts and
division aggravated, many government policies (especially policies
for construction of infrastructure and stimulating economy) could
not materialize. On the other hand, social instability also dampened
investors’ faith in Hong Kong. The investment sentiment became
prudent, and local consumer sentiment was indirectly undermined at
the same time. In Macau, while its economy experienced a period of
rapid growth for over a decade since its gaming industry opening up,
economic growth has been markedly sluggish under the impact of
anti-corruption policies launched and continually implemented by the
government of the mainland China and dwindling tourism. Currently, it
is at a stage of in-depth adjustment. Under the backdrop of changing
macro- market conditions, it is unlikely that the Macau economy will
grow as rapidly as it used to be in the foreseeable future. As such, the
Macau government has reviewed and adopted a series of measures
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to facilitate moderate economic diversity and industry restructuring
with a view to better preparing and adapting to the new economic
norm. However, economic transformation and industry adjustment
will not occur over night and the development of new businesses
will proceed progressively as scheduled, and therefore we may not
witness the effect of new policies in short term.

In light of the lackluster economic situation in 2016, the Group will
adopt more cautious investment strategies, which will be executed
with prudence and closely control its expenditure in order to maintain
its competitiveness. Meanwhile, we will pay more attention to
economic change and take every chance to identify any suitable
investment opportunity in the market for the Group.

Apart from generating reasonable returns to our shareholders and
stakeholders, serving the community to the best of our abilities and
fulfilling corporate responsibilities are also our top priorities. During
the past year, the Group continued to achieve our goals of community
care and pursue environmental protection by actively participating in
a variety of social services. In 2015, we were recognised as a “Caring
Company” by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service and received
the “Hong Kong Corporate Citizenship Award Logo” from the Hong
Kong Productivity Council. This is not only a testament of the wide
recognition to our efforts, but also a huge lift and support to the
whole team. Going forward, we will continue to allocate resources
in the perspective to provide assistance to groups that are in need
and pursue environmental protection as well as in contribution to the
sustainable development of the society.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt
thanks to the management and all staff for their contributions in
different aspects to the Group, and | would also like to express my
greatest gratitude to our shareholders, customers, business partners
and other stakeholders for their long-lasting trust and support. In
the coming year, we will strive to seek for opportunities to grow our
business in an active yet prudent manner in pursuit of a better future
for the overall development of the Group.

TSANG CHIU MO SAMUEL
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong
22 March 2016
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
HECETRS
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OPERATION REVIEW

General Performance

2015 was a very difficult year in the world economy due to a dramatic
slowdown in growth in Mainland China whose GDP had dipped to
6.9% last year. Increase in US federal interest rate and devaluation
of RMB as well as currencies in other Asian countries against US
dollars to which Hong Kong Dollar was pegged lead to drastic drop
on number of tourists to Hong Kong especially tourists from Mainland
China as a result of which the number of tourist arrivals edged down
by about 10% last year. These adversely affected the retails sales
which for the first eleven months of last year fell 3.1% year on year
while retail rents in the traditional top four shopping locations in Hong
Kong (namely Central, Causeway Bay, Tsim Sha Tsui and Mong Kok)
recorded a full year decline of 23.7% according to Colliers Research.

During the year under review, the Group delivered a net loss
of approximately HK$18,443,000, compared to a net profit of
approximately HK$15,109,000 last year. The net loss was mainly
attributable to the decrease of 88.4% in fair value gain on investment
properties from HK$30,200,000 last year to HK$3,500,000 for the
year under review. The unrealized exchange loss of approximately
HK$10,673,000 on RMB bank deposit is another reason for the net
loss.
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The Group’s revenue increased approximately 6.1% from
HK$32,115,000 in 2014 to approximately HK$34,065,000 in 2015
while the gross profit was increased 5.1% to HK$23,962,000.
Other income increased by 31.7% to HK$9,890,000 resulting from
additional high yield RMB bank deposits interest income and forfeiture
of rental deposit amounted to HK$1,050,000 from one of the tenants
upon early termination of tenancy agreement. The administrative
expenses increased 21.4% to $49,935,000 mainly due to the
unrealized exchange loss of HK$10,673,000 incurred during the year
which increased 108.5% from HK$5,119,000 in the year 2014.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s net asset value was
approximately HK$381,079,000 and net asset value per share
was approximately HK$1.23. The Group’s total assets and total
liabilities were approximately HK$658,148,000 and HK$277,069,000
respectively.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT BUSINESS

The Group made no acquisition or disposal in 2015. Asset values
remained approximately the same as 2014 as fair value of our
investment properties was only increased by HK$3,500,000 during
the year being 1.1% more of the fair value in the previous year. Total
rental income was increased approximately 5.9% to HK$11,560,000.
Return from leasing the investment properties is about 6.5%
comparing the gross rental income and cost of investments.

Rental income from Macau properties was increased approximately
91.9% to HK$4,626,000 with an average yield of about 10.9%.
Qur retail shop was leased to a new tenant at a substantial rental
increment by almost three fold at year end 2014 but unfortunately
such tenancy was early terminated in July 2015. A new tenancy was
then entered into the following month when agreed rental income was
substantially lesser due to the economic downturn of Macau.

In Hong Kong the Group’s investment properties comprise an en-bloc
boutique hotel situated in Sheung Wan and some residential units in
Taikoo Shing. Rental income was reduced approximately 18.5% to
HK$6,934,000 with investment yield being approximately 5.1%. The
decrease was due to the expiry of tenancy of the en-bloc boutique
hotel on 30 September 2015 and since then had been left vacant
to undergo renovation. During the period of vacancy the Group had
considered the cost effectiveness and economic benefits of disposing
or renting the en-bloc boutique hotel. However in view of the
appreciably weaker inbound tourism and the slowing economies of
both Hong Kong and Mainland China which had negatively impacted
the property’s asking price, the Group decided to hold on to the
investment property for leasing income and is now at the final stage of
concluding a tenancy agreement with a potential tenant.
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HAIR STYLING BUSINESS

In 2015, the hair styling segment continued to be a stable and
healthy contributor of returns to the Group. For the year under review,
turnover of this segment amounted to HK$17,797,000 representing
an increase of 9.1% as compared with 2014 while segment
profit increased by 16.3% from HK$1,537,000 to approximately
HK$1,787,000. Increase in segment profit was mainly attributable to
the increased revenue about 51.8% of which derived from the newly
recruits back in 2014 while at the same time strenuous effort was
made to keep the fixed overheads down.

OTHER BUSINESS SEGMENTS

On 16 November 2015, a conditional sales and purchase agreement
was entered into with an independent third party as purchaser
for disposal of the entire issued share capital of Century Legend
Securities Limited at consideration of approximately HK$24,000,000.
Completion of the transaction would be subject to conditions fulfilled,
inter alia, approval of Securities and Futures Commission (SFC) on
application of the purchaser to become a substantial shareholder of
the target company. Notification dated 9 March 2016 from SFC of its
approval regarding the transaction was received and completion is
scheduled to take place on 23 March 2016.

Revenue from the stock brokerage business segment increased
by 0.2% to HK$3,157,000 compared with the previous year as the
securities market was still volatile during the year under review.
Segment profit decreased 15.4% by HK$38,000 to HK$209,000 in
2015 in the face of rising commission expense and administrative
cost.

Money lending activities continued to generate positive results with
turnover recorded a decrease of 10.2% to HK$1,551,000 over the
previous year. Segment profit went down 96.8% from HK$1,213,000
in 2014 to HK$39,000 mainly on account of provision of doubtful debt
on one of the borrowers.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a cash and bank
balance including pledged bank deposits of HK$250,713,000
and net current assets of HK$9,335,000. The current ratio
(calculated as the current assets to the current liabilities) of the
Group as at 31 December 2015 was approximately 1.03 (31
December 2014: 1.13).

The sales and purchase of the Group are mainly denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars. Exposure to foreign currency exchange
rates arising out of the Group’s RMB deposit on hand. The
Group at present does not have any contracts to hedge
against its foreign exchange risks.

During the year, certain of the Group’s investment properties
and bank deposits were pledged to two banks to secure the
bank borrowing of approximately HK$247,351,000, which
is denominated in Hong Kong dollars and bearing interest
at floating rate. Neither the Company nor the Group had
any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2015
(31 December 2014: Nil). The capital commitments as at 31
December 2015 amounted to HK$1,605,000 (31 December
2014: Nil).

Capital Structure of the Group

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total equity
of HK$381,079,000, HK$541,000 of fixed rate liability,
HK$247,351,000 of floating rate liability and HK$29,177,000
of interest-free liabilities, representing 0.1%, 64.9% and
7.7% of the Group’s total equity, respectively. The gearing
ratio (calculated as the total long term loan to the total
shareholders’ equity) of the Group as at 31 December 2015
was approximately 0.09% (31 December 2014: 0.02%).
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Employment Information

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed approximately
a total of 43 employees (2014: 39). The Group’s emoluments
policies are formulated on the performance of individual
employee and are competitive in the market. During the
year ended 31 December 2015, total staff costs (excluding
Directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately
HK$10,060,000 (2014: HK$9,344,000).

Final Dividend
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

Prospects

Upon completion in March 2016 of disposal of the stock
brokerage business of the Group carried out by its wholly
owned subsidiary, Century Legend Securities Limited,
resources will be aligned to focus on the Group’s property
investment business in Macau and Hong Kong. As the global
economic outlook is expected to remain uncertain for 2016
and beyond, the market has growing concern about the
outlook of both Macau and Hong Kong economies which are
small economies and have always been susceptible to external
influences. It is expected that the gaming industry and tourism
as in Macau and tourism and external trade performances as in
Hong Kong will remain weak in the near term amid the current
slowdown in mainland China’s economic growth. The down
beat market sentiment will affect the pricing and sales activities
in the property market in each of these economies. While on
one hand landlords may have become more flexible in price
negotiations in view of the gloomy economic outlook and the
onset of rising interest rates, on the other hand prospective
buyers will remain conservative in their pricing due to the
downside risks from the recent interest rate rise, falling retail
sales and drop in inbound visitors, not to mention decreasing
retail rents. Under the circumstances, in the coming year
the Group would adopt a very prudent approach to remix or
reposition our property investment portfolio in relation to any
acquisition or disposal of investment properties to be made
should an opportunity so arised.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of stakeholders and comply with increasingly stringent
regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

Throughout the year of 2015, the Company has complied with all
Code Provisions in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
except for certain areas of non-compliance that are discussed later in
the report.

THE BOARD AND THE MANAGEMENT

The Board lays down corporate strategies, approves overall business
plans and, on behalf of the shareholders, supervises the company’s
financial performance, its management and organization. The Board is
also responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial statements
of each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs the Group and of the results and cash flow of that period. The
Board defines the scope within which the management team carries
out day-to-day management tasks. Each of executive directors
oversees specific areas of our business. The Board is also responsible
for developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance duties as defined under the CG Code.

5 XER NP5
EZQHNBFSKEZEEERRRLE
BEE YR EESRBEREAREEREDL
IR EERSBROKZVERE - EFF
TREZECEEARESR - LA MDA
ETHRESNHNE  ETHAaBEBNEER
Ko URBITHE S BAEERZHAGE -

RZZF-—HFA BRRETXFHNE TR
BEERSN  RRAREBTEAMARSHMA
RAREZ LR ST OME s [BERE
SABRSTAI(TRE ST R RPRE P RIS -

R NEE
EFOHIE LXK - HEREBEBTEMN
EREBREBARRZUBHRA - AAF
CERNER EFENEEEERYB
MMM BREZHRE  CHBEREEER
RNEPRBRARE 2R R BERRZZER
ReRnE EFSRTEEEBRTATER
EBzEE ERTEFHITIEEARAE
BRRENE EFENREBELETAZE
E ABGIEMBAAAAMNEERELGEE
R F B o



M4 SE (SR AIRAF « T~ TUFEFH

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT - 4 & & if #it 1

The Board determines the Company’s overall objectives, strategies
and business plans based on the recommendations of the
management team and approves the key figures underlying the
budgets prepared by the management team.

The Board reviews and approves the Company’s budgets and
checks to see if the targets are being achieved. It also monitors the
Company'’s liquidity and cash positioning. It approves the Company’s
significant transactions.

The Board and management team handle material price sensitive
information with strict confidence. Public announcements are made in
a timely manner to keep shareholders and the public abreast with the
latest developments.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at 31 December 2015, the Board comprises seven Directors,
two of them are women, more than one-third of the Directors are
non-executive and independent of management, thereby promoting
critical review and control of the management process. The Board are
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board has
a balance of skill and experience appropriate for the requirements of
the Group’s businesses. Four of the Directors are executive, namely
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, Executive Chairman, Mr. TSANG Chiu
Ching, Deputy Chairman, Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia and Ms. CHU
Ming Tak Evans Tania, and three of the Directors are independent
non-executive, namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary,
Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward. Each of Directors’ respective biographical
details is set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors” of this
annual report. It is the opinion of the Directors that the Board has
the necessary skills and experience appropriate for discharging their
duties as Directors in the best interest of the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board at all time
met the minimum requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors,
and complied with the requirement that these should include one such
director with appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or
related financial management expertise. Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary
has the appropriate professional qualifications and experience in
financial matters required. Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing
Rules, the Company has received a written confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors of his independence to the
Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) in September 2013. The Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of diversity of Board members. While all Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis, the Company
will ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the needs of the Company’s
business. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills
and knowledge.
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BOARD PRACTICES

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. Notice of at least 14 days
is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. All regular Board meetings adhere
to a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is addressed to
the Board. All Directors have access to board paper and related
materials, and are provided with adequate information which
enables the Board to make an informed decision on the matters to
be discussed and considered at the Board meetings. Minutes of
Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free to
have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain further
information, when required and the Directors can obtain independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family relationship among the members of the Board except
that Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel is a brother of Mr. TSANG Chiu
Ching and Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia. Each of Directors also does
not have any direct or indirect material relationship with the Group.

No insurance coverage has been purchased for any of the Directors
as the Board does not foresee any contingent liabilities against the
Group.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, 5 Board meetings have REBZE_ZEZ—HE+_A=+—HBIEE -
been held. Details of the attendance of the Directors are as follows: EEeRBTRANSS ESFHEHBOT ¢

Number of Board meeting attended/
Number of Board meeting held
HEEESERRE
FBTNESEERRY
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee

Exg EREES REEEE FMEES

Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel WAL

(Chairman and the (EERTHAER)

Chief Executive Officer) 5/5 0/0 0/0 0/0
Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching LREBEE

(Deputy Chairman) (BIERE) 4/5 0/0 0/0 0/0
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia il e 5/5 0/0 0/0 0/0
Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania KREAELL+ 5/5 0/0 1/1 2/2

Independent non-Executive BUHHITEE

Directors
Mr. HUI Yan Kit TAGEE 5/5 2/2 0/0 2/2
Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary HERLE 5/5 2/2 1/1 0/0
Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward EEFELE 5/5 2/2 1/1 2/2
GENERAL MEETING i BROK e

During the Year, the Company convened 1 general meeting on 26 WAFE - ARG R _E—RAFHA -+~
May 2015 which was the annual general meeting of the Company. HBZBBE—ABREAE @ AQAF 2 RERAF
Details of the attendance of the Directors are as follows: g EFHFFBLOT

Number of meeting attended/
Number of meeting held

HEEAY,
FRETHERRE
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel B L

(Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer) — (F/E# T AE%E) 1/1
Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching CRBEE (5/EE)

(Deputy Chairman) 1/1
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia BB+ 1/1
Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania KAELZ T 1/1
Independent non-Executive Directors BUHBITESE
Mr. HUI Yan Kit FFAGEEE 0/1
Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary EEPEE 1/1

Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward @EELE 11
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DIRECTORS TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG code, all directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors of the Company.

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Company
provided to all Directors related articles on regulatory updates,
management skills and corporate governance from The Journal of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, Hong Kong Institution
of Certified Public Accountant and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Each of the Directors had noted and studied
the above mentioned documents and that the Company had received
from Directors the confirmations on taking continuous professional
training.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of 2 years and will continue
thereafter unless and until terminated by either party giving not less
than six months’ prior notice in writing to the other. All Directors are
subject to retirement from office by the rotation at each annual general
meeting as required by the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”).

Service contracts have been entered between the Company with each
of the independent non-executive Directors providing, amongst other
things, their term of offices for a period of 1 year until terminated by
either party giving not less than one months’ prior notice in writing
to the other. Moreover, they would also be subject to retirement by
rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of
the Company. Directors appointed by the Board during the year are
required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at the first
general meeting immediately following their appointments. Further,
at each annual general meeting, one-third of Directors, or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third are required to retire from office.

52 S
RIBCEE AT ZTRIERXEALLK &
RE=ZAZ2IHEZELRAS UBRK
RIRT RS 2 MB NIRRT ERESEEEA
BEEEMMIEMBENBATHESRSE
HER - ARBABERBHEREDEIN - A
BEEEARNTESF AL BEEREE-

RAFEEEAFERMLE  ARFAAEE
EERUATERANERS BB GHM
B ARSMASHTMmTIES
BOEREF  BEEROEREEERZEBX
B REBFDIRINACOHE L K
RAEANMEWEBEER 2 N EE RS 28

e

AN
B

R L EE

EWMTEFCEARBFULRBEH - NF
BE R AME  HRSEEN  BEEER
— AR —HELTIRANEAZEE B
TRAKIERIE - FIEEEHARRARFZ
REARAI(TAR D ER - REERRBF X
g L@WmmRIE -

ARREEBUIFATERLRBEL
EPRIAREZER A —F  EEEA—7
AR—HEHRTPR—EAZEmBIHT A
RAIERLE - SN BERBARARREER
RBFRE L@WREE -

RIFAR - IEESHARARARRBEF
RELHAREINEE EFTENFAZME
ZERARE UNEERRFRZERZAE
RIRRBFREG FREER - LI NEE
BRRBFRGLE =z EFHEARY
=B AABREROET O N=HZ
—ZEFHERME-

19



20

CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2015

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT - 1 3¢

il

op
g
<d
oF

{

Each newly appointed Director is provided with a package of
orientation materials setting out the duties and responsibilities of
Directors under the Listing Rules, related ordinances and relevant
regulatory requirements of Hong Kong. Orientation meeting with
newly appointed Director would be held for briefing on business and
operations of the Company.

DIRECTORS" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors (the “Model Code”). Having made
specific enquiry with all Directors, the Company confirmed that all the
Directors have complied with the required standard of dealings set out
in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The CG Code stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same person. Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel is the Executive
Chairman of the Company and no Chief Executive Officer has been
appointed. The responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer have been
carried out by Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel. The Board believes that
it is in the best interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole for Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, who is knowledgeable in the
business of the Group and possesses the essential leadership skills to
guide discussions of the Board in an effective manner, to continue to
carry out the responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer, which ensures
on the effectiveness and efficiency of the decision making process of
the Board.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 16 September
2005 with a written terms of reference which are available from
the Company Secretary at any time. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee include making recommendations for all
appointment, re-designation and re-appointment of Directors to
the Board. As at 31 December 2015, the Nomination Committee
comprises of three members, two of whom are independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward, Mr. WONG Tak
Ming Gary and one is executive director, Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans
Tania. Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward is the Chairman of the Committee.
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The Nomination Committee is also responsible for determining the
independence of each Director and conducting formal assessment of
the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution of each
Director to the effectiveness of the Board. In evaluating the Board’s
performance, the Nomination Committee considers a number of
factors, including those set out in the Code.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. During the
year, the Nomination Committee has held 1 meeting, to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the existing Board members of the Company to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board to run the business of the
Group steadlily.

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee, on
named basis and by category, at committee meetings during the year
is set out in the section “Board Practices” of this report above.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors will retire
from office at the Company’s annual general meeting. In accordance
with Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws, Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching, Ms. CHU
Ming Tak Evans Tania, and Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr. HUI Yan Kit
and Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary were appointed as independent non-
executive Directors of the Company in July 2004 and September
2006 respectively. They have been the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company for over 11 years and 9 years.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 16 September
2005 with written terms of reference no less exacting terms than the
CG Code. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available from the Company Secretary at any time. As at 31 December
2015, the Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward
and one executive Director, Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania. Mr. HUI
Yan Kit is the Chairman of the Committee.
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The duties of the Remuneration Committee includes making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Directors and senior management, reviewing and
approving the management’s remuneration proposals, making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management, approving
the compensation payable to Directors and senior management on
termination or dismissal to ensure they are consistent with contractual
terms and also ensure that no Director was involved in deciding his/
her own remuneration. Remuneration package for executive Directors
are as follows:

1. The remuneration for the executive Directors comprises basic
salary and pensions.

2. Salaries are reviewed annually. Salary increases are made
where the Remuneration Committee believes that adjustments
are appropriate to reflect performance, contribution, increased
responsibilities and/or by reference to market/sector trends.

3. In addition to basic salary, executive Directors and employees
of the Company and its subsidiaries are eligible to receive a
discretionary bonus taking into consideration factors such
as market conditions as well as corporate and individual
performances.

4. Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments during the
financial year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 13
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments
of the Directors are determined with reference to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and the prevailing market
rates.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year. During
the year, the Remuneration Committee has held 2 meetings to
review the existing remuneration packages of Directors and senior
managements of the Company, and to recommend the remuneration
packages for Directors and senior managements of the Company.
The recommended remuneration packages have been approved by
the entire Board.
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The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee, on
named basis and by category, at committee meetings during the year
is set out in the section “Board Practices” of this report above.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established on 28 December 2015 with
written terms of reference setting out the duties and responsibilities.
The Executive Committee consists of six members, namely, Mr.
TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel (Executive Chairman), Mr. TSANG Chiu
Ching (Deputy Chairman), Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia (Executive
Director), Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania (Executive Director), Ms.
SZE Tak On (Financial Controller) and Ms. WONG Yim Tsui Amy (Vice
President of Human Resources & Corporate Affairs). The Executive
Committee shall normally meet on a monthly basis and in any event no
less than quarterly.

For more efficient operation of the Board, the Executive Committee
was established mainly (i) to make recommendations to the Board on
the strategic aims, objectives and risk management of the Company;
and (ii) to consider and approve matters relating to the day-to-day
operations of the Group.

The Executive Committee was also delegated by the Board to perform
the corporate governance functions set out in Code Provision D.3.1
of the CG Code including (i) to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board; (ii) to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv)
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors; and (v) to review the
Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference
which are available from the Company Secretary at any time. The
Audit Committee currently comprises of three members, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. As at 31 December 2015,
the members are Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary (the Chairman of the
Committee), Mr. HUI Yan Kit and Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward all of whom
are not involved in the day-to-day management of the Company.

The Audit Committee convenes meetings at least twice a year. The
Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Company’s financial
information (including the Company’s financial statements, annual
reports, interim reports and major comments on financial reporting
contained in the financial statements and reports), examining and
studying the Company’s financial reporting system and procedures
for internal supervision and control, and making recommendations to
the Board on matters regarding the appointment of external auditors
and auditing fee etc.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two meetings,
during which the annual report for the year ended 31 December
2014 and the interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2015
were reviewed. Please refer to the table set out in the section “Board
Practices” of this report for the attendance record of individual
Audit Committee members. All these meetings were convened in
accordance with the Bye-laws.

Save as disclosed above, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2015.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that BDO
Limited, Certified Public Accountants (“BDO”), be nominated for re-
appointment as external auditors of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Companies Ordinance requires the Directors to prepare Financial
Statements for each financial year that give a true and fair view of the
Company’s state of affairs as at the end of the financial year and of
its profit or loss for the year then ended. In preparing the Financial
Statements, the Directors are required to:

° select suitable accounting policies and apply them on a
consistent basis, making judgements and estimates that are
prudent, fair and reasonable;

° state the reasons for any significant departure from the relevant
accounting standards; and

° prepare the Financial Statements on a going concern basis,
unless it is not appropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business for the foreseeable future.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records,
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company, BDO, about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group
is set out in the Auditors’ Report on page 47.

AUDITORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION
BDO have been appointed as the external auditors of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2015 by shareholders at the annual
general meeting and they will hold office until the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 have been
audited by BDO.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015, BDO, the external auditors of
the Group, provided the following services to the Group:—

REBE-T-—AF+_A=+—RHLFE -
AEBEZIBZEBMEBLEREZSAME
TSP AR R RIER DA T IR %S

2015 2014

—E-FHE —T-F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T ook e

Audit services ZE AR 580 570
Non-audit services IERZ B AR 7S - -
Total: &t 580 570
The Audit Committee reviews each year a letter from the external BZZEB @5 FEEZZINEEZEENATER KHE
auditors confirming their independence and objectivity and holds  ARERE B R EE M - WEE B TS
meetings with BDO to discuss the scope of their audit. SO ERETe R HESZEE -

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control systems. The internal control systems are designed to meet
the Group’s particular needs and the risks to which it is exposed,
and by their nature can only provide reasonable, but not absolute
assurance against misstatement or loss.

Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, controlling over capital expenditure,
maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring the reliability
of financial information used for business and publication. Qualified
management throughout the Group maintains and monitors the
internal control systems on an ongoing basis.

The board has engaged a consultant company to conduct a review of
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems during the
year and is of the view that the systems of internal control adopted for
the year ended 31 December 2015 were assessed to be satisfactory
and were functioning properly, to a large extent, in safeguarding the
assets employed by the Group.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Sze Tak On was appointed as the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company. She is also an Authorised
Representative of the Company. The biographical details of Ms.
Sze are set out on page 39 under the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management”. According to rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules, Ms. Sze takes no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the year ended 31 December 2015.

SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

In order to develop and maintain a continuing investors’ relationship
with the Company’s shareholders, the Company has established
various channels of communications with its shareholders such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press release and
announcement of the latest development of the Company in a timely
manner. The annual general meeting provides an opportunity for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman as
well as Chairmen of different Committees are available to answer
shareholders’ questions. Moreover, resolutions are proposed
at annual general meeting on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual Directors. In addition, details of the
poll voting procedures and the rights of shareholders to demand a poll
are included in the circular to shareholders despatched together with
the annual report. Details of the proposed resolutions are also set out
in the circular.

The website of the Group (www.clh.com.hk) is also updated
constantly to inform investors and the general public of the latest
information of the Group.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year. The
analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of
the operations are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 49 to 149.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect
of the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the business of the Company and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position are provided in
the letter from the chairman, management discussion and analysis
from pages 5 to 6, pages 8 to 13 of this Annual Report. Description
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company can be
found throughout this Annual Report. Particulars of important events
affecting the Company that have occurred since the end of the
financial year 2015, if any, can also be found in the abovementioned
sections and the Notes to the Financial Statements. The outlook of
the Company’s business is discussed throughout this Annual Report
including in the letter from the chairman from pages 5 to 6 of this
Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATIONS

During the year, the Group has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the operations of the
company.
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RELATION WITH EMPLOYEE, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference
to prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries
and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors like the business
performance of the company and the annual inflation rate in Hong
Kong. Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits
including mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and
performance related bonus.

Customer relationship plays a very important role in the operation of
the company. The company fully understands this principal and thus
maintains close relationship with the customers with a watchful eye
for service improvement to fulfill their immediate and long-term need.

Due to the nature of the business, the company didn’t have any major
supplier that has significant influence on the operations. However, the
company had always maintained fair and co-operating relationship
with the suppliers.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES
AND ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The company is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. We pursue
this business approach by managing our business prudently and
executing management decisions with due care and attention.

The company is also committed to acting in an environmentally
responsible manner. Recycling use of eco-friendly stationery, plus
strenuous efforts to save paper and energy in office, resulted in more
efficient use of resources, as well as reduction of waste.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

There was no movement in the Company’s authorized share capital
during the year under review. During the year 2015, 3,064,000
ordinary shares of the Company were issued as a result of the
exercise of 3,064,000 share options (“Options”) granted under the
Company’s share option scheme as approved by the shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting held on 22 May 2009
(“Scheme”), at the exercise price of HK$0.72 per Option. Details of
the Company’s share capital and details of the Scheme are set out in

notes 29 and 30 respectively to the financial statements.

Summary of the Scheme

1.

The purpose of the Scheme is to reward Participants (as
defined below) who have contributed to the Group and/or to
enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group
and any Invested Entity and/or to encourage Participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
Shares for the benefit of the Company and its Shareholders as

a whole.

The Participants of the Share Option Scheme to whom
Option(s) may be granted by the Board shall include Directors
(including executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) and employees of the
Group and any advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors,
suppliers, agents, customers, business partners, joint venture
business partners, promoters, service providers of any
member of the Group who the Board considers, in its sole

discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group.

Total number of ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the capital
of the Company available for issue under the Scheme as at the
date of this annual report is 32,023,292 Shares. Percentage of
the issued share capital that it represents as at the date of this

annual report is 10.34%.
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4. Maximum entitlement of each eligible Participant under the
Scheme must not to exceed 1% of the Shares in issue in any
12-month period unless approved by shareholders of the
Company.

5. The Shares under an Option must be taken within 10 years
from the date on which the Option is offered or such shorter
period as the Board may determine.

6. There is no minimum period for which an Option must be held
before it can be exercised unless otherwise determined by the
Board.

7. Price payable on application or acceptance of the Option is
HK$1.00. The payments or calls must or may be made in 28
days after the offer date of an Option. There are no terms on
the period within which loans for the purposes of the payments
or calls must be repaid.

8. The exercise price shall be determined by the Board and
notified to each grantee and shall not be less than the highest
of: (a) the closing price of a Share as stated in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant of the relevant Option, which must be a
business day; (b) an amount equivalent to the average closing
price of a Share as stated in The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant Option;
and (c) the nominal value of a Share.

9. The remaining life of the Scheme is approximately 3 years
(expiring on 21 May 2019).

Details of Share Options Granted

Details of the share options granted to the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company or any of its Associated Corporation” and the relevant
movement(s) during the year 2015 is set out below.
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The following table discloses the movements in the Company’s share TXREEBENR -_ZE—FAFEN AR aHZE
options held by each of the Directors, the substantial shareholders of = + KA &= EH&%&$’A FEESAHEEA
the Company and the employees of the Company granted under the  ZBERGHE MAIRIEZET 2VER 2 IR E 2 & E) -
Scheme during the year 2015:
Number of share options
BREdR
Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled  Outstanding
Exercise  Outstanding during during during during at
priceper  at1 January the year the year the year the year 31 December
Name of participant Date of grant Validity period Share 2015 2015 215 2015 2015 2015
(Note 1) (Note 2)
H-%-1F H-%-1%
—H B W-3-Bf WIE-RE MCE-RE MCE-RE AR
JREEE f708 BiE SRAKE RATR ERET Fufr ERAN mit% R
(Riit 1) HKS (W)
i
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania 22 May 2009 22 May 2009 to 0.31 8,930,087 - - - - 8,930,087
Director 21 May 2019
FRERT ks ZEENERACTIRE
£ ity gl E-nERAZT-8
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Syhvia 28 August 2015 28 August 201510 0.2 - 3,064,000 (3,064,000} - - -
Director and substantial 27 August 2025
shareholdr of the Company
e 1% ZE-ENAT/\RE
EEJANTEERR NAZH/AR “ECRENAZTHR
Sub-total 8,930,087 3,064,000 (3,064,000 - - 8,930,087
gt
Employee:
!
Ms. Sze Tek On 22 May 2009 22 May 2009 to 0.31 441,739 - - - - 7441739
21 May 2019
i e 5N ZEENERACTIRE
il g 3-nERAZT-8
Sub-total 7441739 - - - - 7441739
it
Total 16,371,826 3,064,000 (3,064,000 - - 16371,8%
Note 1: The closing prices per share immediately before 22 May 2009 and 28 August izl : B -_ETAFRA-+-HER-ZT—AFNA

2015 (the date on which the share options were granted) were HK$0.35 and
HK$0.71 respectively.

Note 2: The weighted average closing price of these shares immediately before the date
on which the relevant share options were exercised is HK$0.90.

All outstanding share options were exercisable as at 31 December
2015.
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RESERVES

At 31 December 2015, the distributable reserves of the Company
available for distribution as dividend amounted to HK$73,179,000
represented by the contributed surplus of HK$213,978,000 after
compensating the accumulated losses of HK$140,799,000. Under
the Bermuda Companies Act, the contributed surplus shall not be
distributed to the shareholders if there are reasonable grounds for
believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(if) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued capital
and share premium accounts.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out on page 53 and in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the Group’s investment properties are set out on pages
151-152.

BANK BORROWINGS

The total borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2015 amounted
to HK$247,351,000 (2014: HK$249,481,000). Particulars of
borrowings are set out in Note 27 to the Financial Statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year is
HK$16,000 (2014: HK$13,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 150.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Senior Management as at the date of
this Report are set out on page 39 of the Annual Report. Details of
their remuneration are set out in Note 13 to the Financial Statements.

The Group regards the executive directors, director of a subsidiary
and the heads of functional departments as members of the senior
management team.

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior management
were within the following bands:
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Emolument bands i< %5 &
Nil - HK$1,000,000 T E 1,000,000 3
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 751,000,001 T 2 4 #2,000,0007T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 712,000,001 7T 278 #3,000,0007T - -
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 713,000,001 7T 24 #4,000,0007T - 1
HK$4,000,001 — HK$5,000,000 74,000,001 7T 24 #5,000,0007T 1 2
HK$5,000,001 — HK$6,000,000 75,000,001 7T 2% #6,000,0007T 2 -

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five major customers of the Group were attributable to the
property investment business and money lending business. The five
major suppliers of the Group were attributable to hair styling. The
percentages of the sales and purchases for the year attributable to the
Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Sales

— the largest customer 15.19%
— five largest customers combined 32.11%
Purchases

— the largest supplier 26.29%
— five largest suppliers combined 86.37%

At no time during the year, Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major customers or suppliers.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold
any of the Company’s shares during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel (Executive Chairman)
Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia

Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. HUI Yan Kit

Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary

Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation.

DIRECTORS" SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company which runs for an initial term of two years and
will be renewable for successive terms of one year until terminated
by either party by giving to the other not less than six months prior
written notice.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into
a service agreement with the Company for a fixed term for one year
until terminated by either party by giving to the other not less than one
month prior written notice.
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DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements,
no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or holding companies was a party
and in which a Director of the Company or an entity connected with a
Director is or was materially interested, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF
INTERESTS

None of Directors, the substantial shareholders of the Company and
any of their respective close associates has engaged in any business
that competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group or has any other conflict of interests with
the Group during the year under review which are required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the Year and up to the date of this report, there was no
permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of the
Directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors:

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, aged 42, brother of the Company’s
Deputy Chairman, Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching, and Executive Director,
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia, was appointed as Executive Director
and Executive Chairman in 1999 and 2004 respectively. He is
responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business development
and general management. Mr. TSANG is a director of ST (79)
Investment Limited (“ST (79) Investment”) and Barsmark Investments
Limited (“Barsmark”), substantial shareholders of the Company, and
a director of ST Investments Holding Limited, the holding company of
ST (79) Investment and Barsmark.
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Mr. TSANG holds a Master degree in Corporate Finance. He is
active in community services and serves for different organizations in
both Macau and Hong Kong. In Macau, Mr. TSANG is a member of
Macao Chamber of Commerce Youth Committee, Standing Director
of Macau General Association of Real Estate and Deputy Director
of Macau Hoteliers & Innkeepers Association. In Hong Kong, he
is a General Committee Member of The Chamber of Hong Kong
Listed Companies, a Member of the China Committee, Economic
Policy Committee and Small & Medium Enterprises Committee of
the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce. In public services,
Mr. TSANG is a Member of the Special Education & Rehabilitation
Service Governing Committee of Hong Kong Red Cross and a School
Manager of the Incorporated Management Committee of Hong Kong
Red Cross John F. Kennedy Centre.

Prior to joining the Group, he had gained broad experience working
with international firms in building construction, hotel management,
financing and strategic investment.

Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching, aged 39, brother of the Company’s
Executive Chairman, Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, and Executive
Director, Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia, was appointed as Executive
Director and Deputy Chairman in 1999 and 2007 respectively. He
is responsible for the evaluation and implementation of business
development strategies, as well as investment activities. Mr. TSANG
is also a director of ST (79) Investment and Barsmark, substantial
shareholders of the Company and a director of ST Investments
Holding Limited, the holding company of ST (79) Investment and
Barsmark.

Before joining the Group, Mr. TSANG worked in a finance company
responsible for corporate finance functions, direct investments and
project financing.

Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia, aged 41, sister of Company’s
Executive Chairman, Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, and Deputy
Chairman, Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching, was appointed as Executive
Director in 2010. She has been serving as director of a number of
other subsidiaries of the Group with the earliest appointment back
to 2002. She is now responsible for the sales and marketing of the
Group, in particular the residential property investment business
segment. Ms. TSANG is also a director of ST (79) Investment and
Barsmark, substantial shareholders of the Company and a director
of ST Investments Holding Limited, the holding company of ST (79)
Investment and Barsmark.
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Ms. TSANG received her tertiary education in Canada and holds
a Bachelor’s degree in Economics. Before joining the Group, Ms.
TSANG worked in a retail business responsible for its operation, sales
and marketing and had over 11 years experience in the field.

Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania, aged 58, joined the Group in 1999
and was appointed as Executive Director in 2001. Besides overseeing
the Group’s Finance and Human Resources & Corporate Affairs
departments, she is also responsible for all legal matters of the Group.

Ms. CHU received her tertiary education in Canada. Prior to joining
the Group, she had more than 12 years of experience working in the
financial field of various commercial enterprises both in Hong Kong
and Canada.

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. HUI Yan Kit, aged 42, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director in 2004. Before joining the Group, Mr. HUI had
more than 8 years experience in sales and marketing both in Hong
Kong and China. He is currently a general manager of an international
corporation engaged in plastic material manufacturing and trading.

Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary, aged 40, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director in 2006. He is a practicing
certified public accountant in Hong Kong and a fellow member of both
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Taxation
Institution of Hong Kong and also an associate of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He now runs a
professional accountancy firm and has over 10 years of experience
in accounting, auditing, taxation and corporate finance. Mr. WONG is
also an independent non-executive director of Emperor International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 163), a listed Company on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward, aged 41, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in 2011. He received his tertiary education
in Canada. Before joining the Group, being an entrepreneur Mr. AU
ran for over 10 years businesses in various fields covering food and
beverage, interior decorations, trading in equipments, garment and
property investment.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHAN Tai Wai David, aged 51, was appointed in 2002 as
director of Century Legend Securities Limited, the Company’s
wholly owned subsidiary licenced under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQO”) to deal in securities as well as a participant
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is a licenced
representative under the SFO and has over 22 years of experience
in the financial service sector in stock broking. Before joining the
Group, Mr. CHAN had been a dealing director in regional securities
company. He possesses in depth knowledge and broad experience in
the operational and compliance aspects of a securities company. Mr.
CHAN is in charge of the Group’s stock broking business segment
and enhances its business development.

Ms. SZE Tak On, aged 46, was appointed as Financial Controller
and Company Secretary in 2004. Ms. SZE holds a Master degree in
Corporate Finance. She is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. SZE has over 22 years
of experience in accounting, auditing and finance mostly working with
public companies listed in Hong Kong. Ms. SZE is responsible for
the financial and accounting matters of the Group as well as listing
compliance issues of the Company.

Ms. WONG Yim Tsui Amy, aged 54, joined the Group in 1999 and
was promoted Vice President of Human Resources & Corporate
Affairs in 2005. She is tertiary educated in Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and has been admitted member to Hong Kong Institute of
Human Resources Management since 1991. Ms. WONG has over
24 years’ human resources experience in various industries including
finance, retail and servicing and is responsible for the Group’s human
resources management to cope with corporate planning for business
development.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
OF ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of each
of the Directors and Chief Executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) which (i) were required
to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (i) were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO; or (iii) have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) were as follows:

(i) Interests in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Name of company

:
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B) - R()VRIEE S R HIE R 5 35216 M B
THEEzERMATREEE « k(i) R IR E 3P aE
Z EMRRI(T EWARRA ) P2 R £ RIZA
MEARRANBR  SEERTETHA
BEARNRREEAEREZE(ZERRAE
GRPIEXVEEZ E%) 2 By ~ HHERGD REH
hZREIEMRRIAT

() RAXTAROGRAEBRDZER

Approximate

in which ordinary Number of percentage
Nature of shares/securities Ordinary shares/ of total
Name of Director interests are held securities held shareholding
R 52T FisgER/ hBREREL
BB EatE BELER ®BF EHH BREDY
Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching Beneficial interests The Company 749,250 0.24%
BB EigxR ART 749,250 0.24%
Interest of controlled corporation ~ The Company 19,329,195 6.24%

(Note 1 and 3)
SEHEEER AT 19,329,195 L

(Ht&E1k3)
Interest of controlled corporation ~ The Company 88,275,577 28.50%

(Note 2 & 3)
Tk kB /NG| 88,275,577 28.50%

(MiE2%3)
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Name of company

Approximate

in which ordinary Number of percentage
Nature of shares/securities Ordinary shares/ of total
Name of Director interests are held securities held shareholding
RT5AF FiEgER,/ FRBREZ
EEnS BEHE BEELER®BF EHY R
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel Interest of controlled corporation ~ The Company 19,329,195 6.24%
SRR EE (Note 1 and 3)
R E R VYN 19,329,195 6.24%
(FizE1%3)
Interest of controlled corporation ~ The Company 88,275,577 28.50%
(Note 2 & 3)
R =B ER ARF 88275577 28.50%
(Ms2R3)
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia  Beneficial interests The Company 3,064,000 0.99%
LRt EnlEs ARFE 3,064,000 0.99%
Interest of controlled corporation ~ The Company 19,329,195 6.24%
(Note 1 and 3)
R EEER ViN/NE] 19,329,195 6.24%
(Hix123)
Interest of controlled corporation  The Company 88,275,577 28.50%
(Note 2 & 3)
REtEE S NG| 88,275,577 28.50%
(Fizx2k3)
Notes: B3
1. These shares were beneficially owned by Barsmark Investments 1. It % B 1» B Barsmark Investments
Limited. LimitedEm= %A °
2. These shares were beneficially owned by ST (79) Investment Limited. 2. L E RN BB ST (79) Investment Limited &
wER °
3. The issued share capital of Barsmark Investments Limited and ST 3. Barsmark Investments Limited &2 ST (79)

(79) Investment Limited are both wholly and beneficially owned by
ST Investments Holding Limited (“ST Investments”), the issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned to one-third by each of Fortune
Ocean Limited (a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
TSANG Chiu Ching), Conba Investments Limited (a company wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel) and Ssky
Investments Limited (a company wholly and beneficially owned by Ms.
TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia). Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching, Mr. TSANG Chiu
Mo Samuel and Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia are directors of Barsmark
Investments Limited, ST (79) Investment Limited and ST Investments.
Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching is a director of Fortune Ocean Limited. Mr.
TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel is a director of Conba Investments Limited.
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia is a director of Ssky Investments Limited.

Investment Limited 2 B % 77 i 45 |
ST Investments Holding Limited ( [ ST
Investments|) 2 £ E#m# A o Fortune
Ocean Limited(—E A E BB EEEE
BEnBAZAR)  Z2ERLEFERAA
(—HBHEBRAEZ2EESHEZA
@) } Ssky Investments Limited ( — &
HEBMLLtE2EBSBEZAR)E
B EZEEST Investments =9 — 2B
BITRAN - YR EE - EBR AL
& & BR 158 22 4= A Barsmark Investments
Limited » ST (79) Investment Limited }&
ST Investments 2 &% - BRRE L4 B
Fortune Ocean LimitedZ &% - %A R
EERBEEERRARIZES - £
1514z 1+ Bl| ASsky Investments Limited 2
Exo
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and Chief Executive
(including their spouse and children under 18 years of age) of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Division 7 & 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code contained in the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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(i) Interests in the Share options of the Company (i) REQTABREZEDS
Exercise Number Approximate %
price per of options of shareholding
Name of Director/ Date of grant of Exercisable Share (HK$) outstanding in the Company
chief executive share options  period BRITEE MRTE EARATIREZ
EE TETHAEHE RHBRERAD TS () BREZE BHBE DL
Ms. Chu Ming Tak 22 May 2009 22 May 2009 to 0.31 8,930,087 2.88%
Evans Tania “EENF 21 May 2019
RAZELZL FAZ+=ZH Z—ZTAF 0.31 8,930,087 2.88%
FAZ+=ZHEZE
—E-NEF
FA-t+—H
Ms. Sze Tak On 22 May 2009 22 May 2009 to 0.31 7,441,739 2.40%
S . —ZENF 21 May 2019
RAA-+=B ZZTTAF 0.31 7,441,739 2.40%
FAZ+=HE
—E-NEF

RER=-+—H



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section
336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2015, the Company
had been notified of the following substantial shareholders’ interests
and short positions, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued
share capital. These interests are in addition to those in respect of the
Directors and Chief Executives as disclosed above.
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Long position in shares BREOZHE

Approximate

percentage

of total

Number of shareholding

Name Nature of interests shares held HHEEREZ

R ETB EEMtE FrERGEA BREDL

Barsmark Investments Limited (Note 1) Beneficial Interest 19,329,195 6.24%

Barsmark Investments Limited (Ffi5E1) BatEs 19,329,195 6.24%

ST (79) Investment Limited (Note 1) Beneficial Interest 88,275,577 28.50%

ST (79) Investment Limited (Ff{3E1) BEnmfEs 88,275,577 28.50%

ST Investments Holding Limited (Note 1) Interest of controlled 107,604,772 34.74%
corporation (Note 2)

ST Investments Holding Limited (Fff5E1) SPEHEB S 107,604,772 34.74%
(PfFEE2)

Conba Investments Limited (Note 1) Interest of controlled 107,604,772 34.74%
corporation (Note 2)

EBEREBR OB (MEET) RiEHERE R 107,604,772 34.74%
(PfFEE2)

Ssky Investments Limited (Note 1) Interest of controlled 107,604,772 34.74%
corporation (Note 2)

Ssky Investments Limited (Ffi3E1) ZEHEE S 107,604,772 34.74%
(MiEE2)

Fortune Ocean Limited (Note 1) Interest of controlled 107,604,772 34.74%
corporation (Note 2)

Fortune Ocean Limited (FfizE1) HEGEE S 107,604,772 34.74%

(BfaE2)
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Approximate

percentage
of total
Number of shareholding
Name Nature of interests shares held HHEEREZ
RER A EamE FrisiRO & B BHBEDL
Szeto Investments Holdings Beneficial interest 50,996,250 16.47%
(Amusement) Limited (Note 3)
Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement) BER 50,996,250 16.47%
Limited (P 5E3)
Szeto Investments Holdings Limited Interest of controlled 50,996,250 16.47%
(Note 3) corporation
Szeto Investments Holdings Limited (M5E3)  SiE#lAE R 50,996,250 16.47%
Szeto International Holdings Limited Interest of controlled 50,996,250 16.47%
(Note 3) corporation
Szeto International Holdings Limited (M5¥3)  SZiEHlAE#EZ 50,996,250 16.47%
Ms. SZETO Yuk Lin (Note 3) Interest of controlled 50,996,250 16.47%
corporation
A F i+ (F1E3) SYEHEE S 50,996,250 16.47%
Notes: B3
1. Barsmark Investments Limited and ST (79) Investment Limited are both wholly 1. Barsmark Investments Limited &2ST (79) Investment
and beneficially owned by ST Investments Holding Limited, the issued share Limited ¥J B ST Investments Holding Limited &
capital of which is beneficially owned as to one-third by each of (i) Conba BE=ER MEEBBTRASFIBHNERERE
Investments Limited (a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. TSANG ERAFR(—HHBEBREAEL2EEREAZR
Chiu Mo Samuel); (ii) Fortune Ocean Limited (a company wholly and beneficially A]) 1 (i) Fortune Ocean Limited(— /& BB E %L
owned by Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching); and (iii) Ssky Investments Limited (a company E£2EERHA ZAT]) ¢ Kii) Ssky Investments
wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia). Limited(— AR EMBHLt+2EEXHEEZRAF)
BEnBE =D txm -
2. These shares represent the aggregate number of shares beneficially owned by 2. Itk & B {7 #5 Barsmark Investments Limited &2 ST
Barsmark Investments Limited and ST (79) Investment Limited. (79) Investment Limited & z= 5 2 XD 4B 58 ©
3. Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement) Limited is wholly-owned by Szeto 3. Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement)
Investments Holdings Limited, the issued share capital of which is wholly- LimitedJ5#Szeto Investments Holdings Limited
owned by Szeto International Holdings Limited. Ms. SZETO Yuk Lin is wholly 2EHEE - HB E1TRA A Szeto International
and beneficially interested in the entire issued share capital of Szeto International Holdings Limited2 & # 5 - it EEX L2 EE
Holdings Limited. #5 ¥ 5 Szeto International Holdings LimitedZ &
FEFITIRA ©
Save as disclosed above, no other person other than the Directors or  BRLA EFT#FE4N - MEEE M A (AR RIES

Chief Executives of the Company had interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

HITHARRI) RIRIBEE S R BB ERDIH
336IRA N AIAT 176 2 B L APTRE 8k 2 BX
AR P AR IIAR -



CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions for the year under review are
set out in note 36 to the financial statements. None of these related
party transactions constitutes connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction which is required to be disclosed under the
Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year with the code
provisions same as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report
and most of the recommended best practices in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices as set out in the Listing Rules
except for certain areas of non-compliance that are discussed in the
Corporate Governance Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties
of the Audit Committee were prepared and adopted with reference to
“A Guide for The Formation of An Audit Committee” published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board
of Directors and the Company’s auditors in matters coming within
the scope of the Group audit. It also reviews the effectiveness of
the external audit and of internal controls and risk evaluation. The
Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary and
Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward. Two meetings were held during the current
financial year. Audit Committee had met with the management of the
Company and the auditors to review the final results, considered the
significant accounting policies, and discussed with the management
of the Group’s internal control system. The Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 have been
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

From information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital are held by the public at all times during the year.

AUDITORS

BDO Limited has acted as auditor of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2015. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 22 March 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

|IBDO

&% : +852 2218 8288
{BE : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Century Legend (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Century
Legend (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 149, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

T 57 A% B R

25 Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
T8 57 A% B R

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2015 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lee Ming Wai

Practising Certificate Number P05682

Hong Kong, 22 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
o TN S

for the year ended 31 December 2015 ¢ #ZE - E—f#F - H=1+—HIFFE

M4 SE (SR AIRAF « T~ TUFEFH

2015 2014
—E-hHE —E—MFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt aE BT T BT
Revenue &= 5(a) 34,065 32,115
Cost of sales SHE AR (10,103) (9,310)
Gross profit EF 23,962 22,805
Other income HAn g A 5(b) 9,890 7,509
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets at 2 /A S (E 58k kA E R
fair value through profit or loss RREE VB EEL
AEE(EBRE), W (530) 834
Fair value gain on investment properties &Y 2 A FERZ 15 3,500 30,200
Administrative expenses TR (49,935) (41,120)
Finance costs Bh & Bk A 7 (4,925) (4,867)
(Loss)/Profit before income tax RET BB AT (E5HE) %A 8 (18,038) 15,361
Income tax expense FiiSfiMA > 9 (405) (252)
(Loss)/Profit for the year TEE(FER)EF (18,443) 15,109
Other comprehensive income Higzmu A
Items that may be reclassified HESTESEN 7 EZ
subsequently to profit or loss BEmZ2EH
Revaluation of available-for-sale BHEAIHEERFEE
financial assets (2,939) 350
Other comprehensive income REEHEHMEEBA
for the year (2,939) 350
Total comprehensive income REERHEBALLE
for the year (21,382) 15,459
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
o TN &S

for the year ended 31 December 2015 « B ZE - E—HF+—H=1+—HI F&

2015
—E-REF

HK$’000
BET T

(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to: L\ T & IEEGARFEE

(B58) %57
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZE DN (19,132) 14,489
Non-controlling interests JEVE R RE 689 620
(18,443) 15,109
Total comprehensive income for the U T&EEERFEE
year attributable to: ZHEUWR AL :
Owners of the Company FiNNEIE/ Z=N (22,071) 14,839
Non-controlling interests IR 689 620
(21,382) 15,459
HK cents HK cents
=gl AL
(Loss)/Earnings per share FR(EE) BF 10
— Basic —%Z’K (6.23) 4.77

— Diluted — 8 (6.23) 4.68
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A

R NS

as at 31 December 2015 » R-FE—R#F+_-F=+—H

2015 2014
—E-—RE —ZE—pF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
P BT T BEETIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NEE 14 3,169 3,367
Investment properties wEME 15 313,400 309,900
Prepaid land lease payments TEf LA E 508 16 3,700 3,823
Available-for-sale financial assets e MEEE 17 18,129 20,924
Loans receivable e B 18 36,987 29,800
375,385 367,814
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 19 53 53
Prepaid land lease payments TEfS T ERIR 16 123 123
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEVRERRER
profit or loss RHEE M BEE 20 4,896 5,693
Trade and other receivables and BN E AU ER R
prepayments SELRE /O 21 13,717 14,358
Loans receivable B E R 18 1,943 2,389
Trust bank balances held on behalf REFPRB ZETRITER
of customers 22 11,318 6,086
Pledged bank deposits BEEMIRITER 23 118,736 121,212
Cash and bank balances RE RIRTTEE R 24 131,977 157,262
282,763 307,176
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables = EERERRK 25 14,025 8,986
Other payables and accruals H b e BR A  FE R F0E 11,746 14,026
Obligations under finance leases Bh & FE 4 AR HE 26 203 121
Bank borrowings (secured) RITEE(FEMR) 27 247,351 249,481
Tax payable FETREIE 103 -
273,428 272,614
Net current assets REBEEFE 9,335 34,562
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBERS 384,720 402,376
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A A B IR UL R

as at 31 December 2015 « R-F—x4F1+—-F=+—H

2015
—E—RF
HK$’000
BET T
Non-current liabilities kREBEB
Obligations under finance leases b & FH Ay R 26 338 90
Deferred tax liabilities ELETIBA R 28 3,303 3,001
3,641 3,091
Net assets EETHE 381,079 399,285
EQUITY s
Share capital R& 2 29 61,941 61,328
Reserves E 33 315,325 334,833
Equity attributable to the owners of NAEHEA AELRER
the Company 377,266 396,161
Non-controlling interests e AR R = 3,813 3,124
Total equity fERAEE 381,079 399,285
On behalf of the directors REES
Z B REAE
Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania
E2 E2

Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2015 * #Z=—F—AF+=-H=+—HIF&F

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

RAREARLESR
Share Non-
Share Share Capital  Revaluation option Retained controlling
capital  premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* profits* Total interests Total
Rx  RGEE  EARE  EfRFE BRERE  REERF gt FERER ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB BETT BETT AT BETT BT BETT BT
(Note 33a)  (Note 33b)  (Note 33¢)
(Fstssa)  (Mi3#330)  (R3k3sc)
At 1 January 2014 RZE-mE-F—H 60,722 149,619 146,189 6,549 2,945 13,393 319,417 2,504 381,921
Shares option granted (note 80) 2R ERE(HE30) - - - - 537 - 537 - 537
Shares issued under share option ~ BEEER g EIFF%(T2
scheme (note 30) R (H3E30) 606 1,299 - - (537) - 1,368 - 1,368
Transactions with owners EREAETZRS 606 1,209 - - - - 1905 - 1905
Profit for the year KEERT - - - - - 14,489 14,489 620 15,109
Other comprehensive income ~ Eft2EMA
Revaluation of avallable-for-sale B E 7 BTkEE
financial assets - = = 350 = = 350 = 350
Total comprehensive income ~ A£E2EWALE
for the year = - = 350 = 14,489 14,839 620 15,459
At 31 December 2014 and REE-RETZA
1 January 2015 “T-BR-E-1%
-A-H 61,328 150,918 146,189 6,899 2,945 21,882 396,161 3,124 399,285
Shares option granted (note 80) 2R ERE(HE30) - - - - 969 - 969 - 969
Shares issued under share option  REBRIEH2IF% T2
scheme (note 30) {3 (A3E30) 613 2,563 - - (969) - 2,207 - 2,207
Transactions with owners BREARTZRS 613 2,563 - - - - 3,176 - 3,176
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - (19,132) (19,132) 689 (18,443)
Other comprehensive income ~ Eft2EHA
Revaluation of avallable-for-sale  BETEHE HBAE
financial assets - - - (2,939) - - (2,939) - (2,939)
Total comprehensive income  AEE2FWALLE
for the year - - - 2,039) - (913 (220m) 689 (21,38
At 31 December 2015 R=E-R%+-B=t1-A 61,941 153,481 146,189 3,960 2,945 8,750 371,266 3,813 381,079

*

The total balances of these equity accounts at the end of reporting period
represent reserves in the consolidated statement of financial position.

*

RBEMR 2 ZERERZERETRENGRS

EITSARORN R 2 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
maBlaena R

for the year ended 31 December 2015 « #ZE - E—f#F+ - H=1+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-HE —E-lmF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
i BET T ook e
Cash flows from operating activities REEKELZHEERE
(Loss)/Profit before income tax PSR (B8 ) /s A (18,038) 15,361
Adjustments for: AT ZIBEH AR -
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BERREITE
equipment 14 837 974
Fair value gain on investment properties % &Y% 2 A AW 15 (3,500) (30,200)
Provision for impairment on FERE R Z BB
loans receivable 1,000 6
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEAT - b 78 & FRIE 85
payments 16 123 123
Employee share option expense B EEIRERS 30 969 537
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets &2 V(A8 R
at fair value through profit or loss BRHPRIBEZHEEE L
NEEER (W) 530 (834)
Bank interest income |RITHEBHA 5(b) (7,600) (6,376)
Dividend income from listed investments KRB TR EZKREWA  5(b) (1,054) (1,040)
Loss of disposals of property, LEWE  BEKX
plant and equipment Xtz EE - 1
Finance costs BhE AN 7 4,925 4,867
Operating loss before working capital NkEEESEFHA 2
changes $e e E e (21,808) (16,581)
(Increase)/Decrease in loans receivable  EWEFR (L) F 4 (7,741) 12,592
Decrease in inventories FE R - 20
Decrease in financial assets at fair value 22 F(E5BR R A E R
through profit or loss BRI 2 B EER D 267 154
Decrease in trade and other receivables 4 % K H (b fE U BR 7 &2
and prepayments TER FRIBR 414 1,623
Increase in trust bank balances held on REFEHA Z55E8R1T
behalf of customers LERRIZ N (5,232) (3,684)
Increase in trade payables, other payables & % fEBRZR - E4th fE T
and accruals BR SR JE 5T SR TR 42 0 2,799 7,979
Net cash (used in)/generated from BT (FTRE) /82
operating activities REFEE (31,301) 2,103




Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of available-for-sale
financial assets

Decrease/(Increase) in pledged bank
deposits

Decrease/(Increase) in bank deposits
maturing beyond three months

Bank interest received

Dividend received from listed investments

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Capital element of finance lease payments
Interest element of finance lease payments
New bank borrowings

Repayments of bank borrowings

Loan interest paid

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

Analysis of the balances of cash
and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances as stated
in consolidated statement of financial
position
Less: short-term deposits with maturity
beyond three months but within
one year

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

AL e (SR M) ARA T

for the year ended 31 December 2015

REXBELEZRERE
BEYX  BERZE
BEAHLECMBEE

BEMRITERRD,
(38 hn)

HE=EAZHZ
RITFFORD, (32 0)

EUERTTHLE

BERE EHREZBRE

REEBPS,(FTFE)
REFE

BMEXBELECRERE
BMEMENKZ EANED
BEMENFZF S5
HRITEE
BERITIEE
ENERHE
BT BB ZFAEHA

BMEXL ()
PRSIR & %5

RERBRESEEY
(BD), PR

R—A—BRZAER
RESEY

R+=—A=+—8=
HERBEEEY

EQ%EQ%E%ZE%

Py

R B M IBARRN KRR Z
e RIBITHR

e =l AE—FR
Mz EHER

RT-ZA=t—HZRER
REEEY

ZE AR,

g0 A =R
EAEH S E R

HE-F—mF+-A=+—AULFE

2014
—T—mEF
HK$’000
BEET T

(121)
(15)
39,990
(12,874)
(4,852)
1,368

23,496

6,332

46,146

52,478

157,262

(104,784)

52,478
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 A B R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2015 « #ZE - E—f#F+ - H=1+—HIFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Century Legend (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company’s
registered office is at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda and its principal place of business
is at Unit 906, 9th Floor, AXA Centre, 151 Gloucester Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency
of the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand (“HK$'000”) except when otherwise indicated.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 32. The Company and its subsidiaries are referred to as

the Group hereinafter.

On 16 November 2015, the Group entered into a conditional
sales and purchase agreement to dispose of its subsidiary
engaging in stock broking in Hong Kong. The disposal is
subject to terms and conditions as stipulated in the agreement
and it has not yet been completed as at 31 December 2015.

Further details about the disposal are set out in note 39.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 149
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collectively includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the provisions of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which concern the
preparation of financial statements. The consolidated financial
statements also include the applicable disclosure required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015 were approved and authorised for issue by

the board of directors on 22 March 2016.
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for the year ended 31 December 2015 » EZE —F— A4+ - H=1—HIFFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS

(a)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs - effective 1 January
2015

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following new standards, amendments
and interpretations issued by the HKICPA, which
are relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial
statements for the annual period beginning on
1 January 2015:

HKFRSs Annual Improvements
(Amendments) 2010 - 2012 Cycle
HKFRSs Annual Improvements
(Amendments) 2011 - 2013 Cycle

The adoption of these amendments has no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but not yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group.

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative’

HKAS 1
Amendments to Equity method in Separate
HKAS 27 Financial Statements'’

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?
HKFRS 16 Leases?®
HKFRSs Annual Improvements
(Amendments) 2012-2014 Cycle'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Disclosure
Initiative

The amendments are designed to encourage entities
to use judgement in the application of HKAS 1 when
considering the layout and content of their financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 27 - Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the equity
method in accounting for its investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates in its separate financial
statements.

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and
that have contractual terms that give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual
cash flow characteristics test) are generally measured
at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet the
contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”) if the objective of the entity’s business
model is both to hold and collect the contractual cash
flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities may
make an irrevocable election at initial recognition to
measure equity instruments that are not held for trading
at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments are
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new
general hedge accounting requirements to allow entities
to better reflect their risk management activities in
financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS
39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps
approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: ldentify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

HKFRS 16 - Leases

The new standard specifies how an entity to recognise,
measure, present and disclose leases. HKFRS 16
requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for all
leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the
underlying asset has a low value. Lessors continue to
classify leases as operating or finance with HKFRS 16’s
approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged
from its predecessor HKAS17.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the potential impact of these new or revised HKFRSs.
The Group is not yet in a position to state whether these
new pronouncements will result in material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED

HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

(c) New Companies Ordinance provisions
relating to the preparation of financial
statements
The provisions of the new Companies Ordinance,
Cap. 622, in relation to the preparation of financial
statements apply to the Company in this financial year.

The directors consider that there is no impact on the
Group’s financial position or performance, however
the new Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622, impacts on
the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and certain financial instruments
which are stated at fair value. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed in note 4.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.2 Business combination and basis of 3.2 XBEHRGEEE

3. TEEGFHEORMZE (5

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (see note 3.3 below). Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interest either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by another HKFRS. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments, in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.
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for the year ended 31 December 2015 ¢ #ZE - E—f#F - H=1+—HIFFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2

3.3

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present:

- power over the investee;

- exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee; and

- the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns.

Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.4

Foreign currency

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of reporting period, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
end of reporting period retranslation of monetary assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$ at
the closing rates at the end of reporting period. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the translation reserve in
equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the translation
reserve relating to that operation up to the date of
disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the
profit or loss on disposal.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.5 Revenue and other income recognition
Revenue and other income is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and when the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably on the following bases:

(@)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the
customer and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured. This is usually
taken as the time when the goods are delivered
and the customer has accepted the goods.

Revenue from rendering of services is
recognised when the relevant services are
rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and the effective interest rate
applicable.

Commission and management fee income
is recognised when the agreed services are
provided.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion
basis over the relevant lease terms.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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for the year ended 31 December 2015 » #HZ - =

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.6

3.7

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. Income earned on
temporary investments of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The cost of an asset includes its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Buildings held under leasing agreements are
depreciated over their expected useful lives of 38 years
or over the term of lease, if shorter.

Depreciation on other assets is provided to write off the
cost less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, at the following
rates per annum:

10-33 1/3%
20 -33 1/3%
33 1/3%

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Motor vehicles
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.7

3.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but not
held for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property
is stated at fair value. Fair value is determined by
external professional valuers, with sufficient experience
with respect to both the location and the nature of the
investment property. The carrying amounts recognised
at the end of reporting period reflect the prevailing
market conditions at the end of reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 A B R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2015 ¢ #ZE - E—f#F - H=1+—HIFFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.8

3.9

Investment properties (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair
value or the sale of an investment property are included
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties or inventories, the deemed cost of
property for subsequent accounting is its fair value at
the date of change in use.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Prepaid land lease payments, property, plant and
equipment and the Company’s interests in subsidiaries,
are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs to sell, and value-in-use. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.9

3.10

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments of such assets, are included
in property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligation under finance leases.

Subsequent accounting for assets held under finance
lease agreements corresponds to those applied to
comparable acquired assets. The corresponding
finance lease liability is reduced by lease payments less
finance charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations
for each accounting period. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 A B R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2015 ¢ #ZE - E—f#F - H=1+—HIFFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.10 Leases (Continued)

Operating lease charges (the Group as
lessee)

Where the Group has the right to use the assets held
under operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the time pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rental are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Assets leased out under operating leases (the
Group as lessor)

Assets leased out under operating leases are measured
and presented according to the nature of the assets.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the
lease term on the same basis as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial assets

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired
and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at every end of reporting period.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade
date. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised initially at fair value and other financial
assets are initially measured at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred.

At the end of each reporting period, financial assets are
reviewed to assess whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment
loss is determined and recognised based on the
classification of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2015 ¢ #ZE - E—f#F - H=1+—HIFFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. E B e G EOR M (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.11 Financial assets (Continued) 3.11 MBEE(E)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or BRAFEIRREABIZERS
loss BECHMEEE

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss represent financial assets held for trading.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near
term, or it is part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-
term profit-taking. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments or financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets
included in this category are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Fair value is determined by reference to active market
transactions or using a valuation technique where
no active market exists. Fair value gain or loss does
not include any dividend or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised as income in
accordance with the Group’s policies in note 3.5.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate
and transaction cost. Gain and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the loans and receivables
are derecognised or impaired as well as through
amortisation process.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. E e G EOR M (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.11 Financial assets (Continued) 3.11 MBEEE)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Non-derivative financial assets that do not qualify for
inclusion in any of the other categories of financial
assets are classified as available-for-sale financial
assets.

All financial assets within this category are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
a change in the fair value, excluding any dividend
and interest income which are recognised in profit or
loss in accordance with the policies set out in note
3.5, is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in the revaluation
reserve in equity, except for impairment losses (see
the policy below) and foreign exchange gains and
losses on monetary assets, until the financial asset is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

At the end of each reporting period, financial assets
other than at fair value through profit or loss are
reviewed to determine whether there is any objective
evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2015 ¢ #ZE - E—f#F - H=1+—HIFFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11

Financial assets (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the assets in the group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.11 Financial assets (Continued)
If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

U]

Financial assets carried at amortised
cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The amount
of the loss is recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to
the extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets carried at amortised
cost (Continued)

Where the recovery of trade receivables is
considered doubtful but not remote, the
impairment losses for doubtful receivables are
recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery of trade
receivables is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade
receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account in respect of that receivable
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-
for-sale financial asset has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity and there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, an amount is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss as an
impairment loss. That amount is measured as
the difference between the asset’s acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale and
stated at fair value are not recognised in the
profit or loss. The subsequent increase in fair
value is recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.12

3.13

Inventories

Inventories comprise finished goods and consumable
stocks and are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value after making due allowance for
obsolescence on slow moving items. Cost, calculated
on the first-in, first-out basis, comprises invoiced value
of goods and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present locations and conditions.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
in the ordinary course of business less any applicable
costs necessary to make the sale.

Accounting for income taxes
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the end of reporting period. They are
calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate,
based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes
to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a
component of income tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred income taxes are calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences. This involves the
comparison of the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements with
their respective tax bases at the end of reporting period.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
tax losses available to be carried forward as well
as other unused tax credits, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit, including existing taxable
temporary differences, will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.13 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they are
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at
fair value under HKAS 40 Investment Property. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
the economic benefits embodied in the property over
time, rather than through sale.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.13 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)
Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that
are charged or credited to other comprehensive income
or directly to equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if, the Group:

(a) has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in net if, and only if:

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities;
and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either (i) the same
taxable entity; or (ii) different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.14

3.15

3.16

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and
in hand as well as short-term bank deposits with original
maturities of three months or less which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received on the
issuance of shares over the par value. Any transaction
costs associated with the issuance of shares are
deducted from share premium (net of any related
income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental
costs directly attributable to the equity transaction.

Retirement benefit costs and short-term
employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to be
settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the
services are rendered by the employees.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.17 Share-based employee compensation

3. TEEGFHEORMZE (5

3.17 UROXNzEEMHE

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans to remunerate its employees and
directors.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant
of any share-based compensation are measured at their
fair values. These are indirectly determined by reference
to the share options awarded. Their value is appraised
at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions.

All share-based compensation is ultimately recognised
as an expense in full at the grant date when the share
options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in share options reserve. If vesting periods
or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the best
available estimate of the number of share options
expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are
taken into account by adjusting the number of equity
instruments expected to vest at the end of each
reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting period is based
on the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the
options granted. As long as all other vesting conditions
are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of whether
the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve
a market vesting condition.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.17

3.18

Share-based employee compensation
(Continued)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are later forfeited or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to retained profit/
accumulated losses.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 3.6).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.18 Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

(1)

(i)

(i)

Bank borrowings

Bank borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Bank borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method. Bank borrowings are
classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the
end of reporting period.

Obligation under finance leases

Obligation under finance leases are measured
at initial value less the capital element of lease
repayments (see note 3.10).

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and
other payables and accruals) are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.19

3.20

Financial guarantees contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee which is
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss, it is
recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contact at
the higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets (note 3.20); and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS 18
Revenue.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation. All
provisions are reviewed at each reporting period and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.21

3.22

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the chief operating
decision maker i.e. the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Related parties
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(if) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of key management

personnel of the Group or the Company’s
parent.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FEEFIEUORMEE (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.22 Related parties (Continued) 3.22 BAEAL(HE)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) HEE T E’Eﬁﬂﬂ#
following conditions apply: BN E R EAREE G HE
(i) The entity and the Group are members of () ZEREAEE
the same group (which means that each BR—£BE2ZK
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is I=EPNEIIQIE=SS3/N
related to the others). Al B AR &
EEY A
b EBRE) -
(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture (ii) —HEBAES—
of the other entity (or an associate or joint FEREMEE QR
venture of a member of a group of which FEEDE(EHR
the other entity is a member). —EBAKER
Al EEET K

BAFZBER
ARAERE) -

(i) ~ Both entities are joint ventures of the (i MHEEBEEHEREA

same third party. —FEZTHEE
BE -

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third vy —HEEBAE=
entity and the other entity is an associate FEEMNEED
of the third entity. ¥ MmME—E®

BZE=HERE
BB AR o

(vy  The entity is a post-employment benefit (v) ERBARNSHL
plan for the benefit of the employees HAEEEFHAE
of the Group or an entity related to the ZEEMREEAN
Group. =R BE R R

Fztal -
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.22 Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply: (Continued)

(Vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a Group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;
(if) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Key sources of estimation and uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

Impairment of receivables

The policy for the impairment of receivables of the
Group is based on, where appropriate, the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of the receivables and on
the management’s judgement. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, which is based in part on the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. If the financial conditions of debtors of the Group were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional provision for impairment may be
required.

Estimated fair value of investment properties

As disclosed in note 15, the Group’s investment properties
were revalued at the end of reporting period by independent
professional valuers. Such valuations were based on
certain assumptions which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results. In making the
judgement, the Group considers latest completed transactions
and information from current prices in an active market for
similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based
on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period.

For more detailed information in relation to fair value
measurement of investment properties, please refer to note 15.
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S5(a).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4. BRI EERAE ()
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies FER = R 2B ¥ B
The application of accounting policies which requires the ERANSEEEBIEEEAHE v
exercise of critical judgement by the management is discussed SRR
below:
Assets classified as held-for-sale PTHEAREGEZEE
Assets are held-for-sale when they are recovered principally EEETFEFALERSMIEHEF
through a sale transaction rather than through continued BB EKER - BIBEEEECE
use. Directors exercise judgement in assessing whether the B oEBEAEDHE U HEEEE
subject assets are available for immediate sale in their present EAUAERRATAREETES T
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary ENBEECERGHERIEHER
for sales of such assets and whether the sale of the assets UEHEERIBAEEEE o 1T HE
are highly probable. In making this judgement, the directors B BEEAAEZEZREETRER
evaluate, among other factors, those critical conditions as BEBESWEMBZEZIEMY - LT
set out in the sale and purchase agreement of the assets and EZE TS AR ERT S B RE
assess if they are usual and customary for the sale. In addition, REB - 1o EBNFHLEERS
the directors evaluate if the sale can be completed within one AN EEEYEARAGEZ AR
year from the date the assets are being classified as held-for- 2 —FRTK -
sale.
REVENUE 5(a). Ut 4
Revenue which is derived from the Group’s principal activities FRN - KEAEFBTEEBLEER
is recognised during the year as follows: ZWEIT
2015 2014
—E2—RE —ZET—OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Rendering of hair styling services R EER L= AR 7S 17,797 16,319
Brokerage and commission income L Ae AR A 2,761 2,647
Interest income from money lending EBEERREEL 2 FEWA
and stock broking 1,947 2,231
Gross rental income from investment REREMZE 2HEEEHA
properties 11,560 10,918
34,065 32,115
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for the year ended 31 December 2015 ¢ #ZE - E—f#F - H=1+—HIFFE

S5(b). OTHER INCOME 5(b). HAth e A
2015 2014
—E—RE —ZE—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Bank interest income HRITHEWA 7,600 6,376
Dividend income from listed investments R E & E 2 KEU A 1,054 1,040
Sundry income FETEULA 1,236 93
9,890 7,509
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.  ArERERE
The Group has identified its operating segments and prepared BIETHR2H T AEERITE S A
segment information based on the regular internal financial REREAEEEBEKIND 2 BR
information reported to the Group’s executive directors for DA R i 5 5% 5 BB 0 /3R 2 W ER BA
their decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s BER  AEBCDHBELE S
business components and review of these components’ REDHER - WHBERTHTES
performance. The business components in the internal (FE2EERKE) ZEBAKBA T
reporting to the executive directors who are the chief operating BEAEBEFTZEEMRRBERETE -
decision-makers are determined following the Group’s major AEFEBEFD BT EERLESEE -

product and service lines. The Group is currently organised
into the following four operating segments.

Hair styling - Provision of hair styling and related ZRIRE - TEAREERRR
services in Hong Kong 1B RR TS

Money lending — Provision of commercial and BE - EEARERERLA
personal loans in Hong Kong B

Stock broking — Provision of stock broking services RELL - EEBRERELLR
in Hong Kong %

Property investments — Investing in commercial and MERE - BREUNRFIRESZ
residential properties for rental PEENRFEMEINE
income potential and for capital BHESWAENIRE
appreciation in both Macau and IEE

Hong Kong
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UEGE & I

—hFETZA=1—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable segments:

Segment revenue

6.

Or R E R (48)
SEUN R LA
RSO DR S AEE Y WHRE

2ot

Segment results

2 IRz D EPFELE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RF SN — T T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T BET T P T IT
Hair styling SRR ET 17,797 16,319 1,787 1,537
Money lending BE 1,551 1,728 39 1,213
Stock broking IR E &40 3,157 3,150 209 247
Property investments Y EE 11,560 10,918 (4,705) 21,604
34,065 32,115 (2,670) 24,601
Unallocated income RoOBEUWA 5,260 3,554
Exchange losses, net b 5 BB F 5 (10,673) (5,119)
Fair value (loss)/gain on BT A AV E
financial instruments (B18), W (530) 834
Corporate staff costs NGTE= 7 9N (4,822) (4,366)
Other corporate and EMARRADERY
unallocated expenses (4,603) (4,143)
(Loss)/Profit before BRETISHIRT(E518),
income tax gl (18,038) 15,361

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated from
external customers.

Segment results represent the profit earned/loss incurred
by each segment without allocation of central administration
costs. Segment results exclude certain interest income,
dividend income, exchange losses and fair value change
on financial instruments which arise from assets which are
managed on a group basis. Segment results also exclude
corporate staff costs and other corporate expenses. This
is the measure reported to the executive directors for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

LB 2H KB RBRINGEEP
ZWEs e

DEEBE S D MMM BN, FE
EZER > WES R RITHREAR
DEEBETBRETHNELA - BE
WA\ER%E&E@A%EMEZ
BEELAZEMIARTEES -

%%%ﬁK@%@TEI&$&E%
RAFAX - WRARITEEE2RLTT
% BEDEERAREDBRE -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.

Segment assets and liabilities

IR (A8
THEERER

2015
—E-AE
HK$’000
BT T
Segment assets PEEE
Hair styling ZARIES 5,139 3,160
Money lending ®TE 39,265 32,971
Stock broking e CES) 31,987 27,452
Property investments YL E 324,468 322,406
Total segment assets DI EEELR 400,859 385,989
Available-for-sale financial assets At HE B EE 18,129 20,924
Financial assets at fair value through BN FEFER KRR RS
profit or loss BRIR 2 BT E 4,896 5,693
Pledged bank deposits BEEBRITIF 118,736 121,212
Short-term bank deposits HHERRITIE R 107,621 133,991
Other corporate and unallocated assets ~ H AR RARDEEE 7,907 7,181
Consolidated total assets EHEERR 658,148 674,990
Segment liabilities PEEE
Hair styling ERRE 1,813 1,461
Money lending BE 82 82
Stock broking eSS 14,299 9,279
Property investments YIERE 58,086 62,426
Total segment liabilities DEPBELREE 74,280 73,248
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIEEE 3,303 3,001
Bank borrowings RITIEE 198,000 198,000
Other corporate and unallocated liabilities Hi AR R ADEAE 1,486 1,456
Consolidated total liabilities GHtEERE 277,069 275,705
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. Z#B&R (48)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PTHEEREE(E)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and MEEEDLRIBE S KD ILEE R

allocating resources between segments: ms :

- all assets are allocated to reportable segments other - FFEEEYDEEZAIZHD S
than corporate assets, available-for-sale financial (RAIEE  FIHEEZHMBE
assets, financial assets at fair value through profit or B EBEAFEINRENEBZEE
loss, pledged bank deposits and certain bank deposits FEREBEZVBEE  RESE
which are managed on group basis; and EER 7B BEBRRITFERAR

ETRHARTERGRN) &

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other — FMEaBHPRET2HH 50
than deferred tax liabilities and certain borrowings CEEMEaERIZHSEES
which are managed on group basis, and corporate BrETRITEERARARE
liabilities. BRAN) o

Other segment information Hithp &R

2015 2015 2015 2015 2015

ZE-1f 2-1f ZE-1f -1 ~Z-1f

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

YT BT BT BRI BRI
Halr styling Eib Gl - - - - - - 87 5 122 127
Money lending {48 1,551 1,728 - - - - - - - -
Stack broking ety 396 503 - - - - 9 3% 35 4
Property investments 1% 3,449 3,872 3,500 30,200 1,198 1,278 3 16 280 530
5,396 6,103 3,500 30,200 1,198 1,278 99 59 437 698
Unallocated FAR 4,151 2,504 - - 3,721 3,589 540 117 523 399

Total & 9,547 8,607 3,500 30,200 4,925 4,867 639 176 960 1,097
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.

Geographical information

The geographical location of the specified non-current assets
(i.e. non-current assets excluding financial assets) is based on
the physical location of the assets. The geographical location
of customers is based on the location at which the services
were provided or the goods were delivered.

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of the
specified non-current assets and revenue from external
customers, analysed by the geographical location.

3 i R (4
B K}
EEFERBAETRENEEE
RBEE) ZWENEREAEE
BREMEYS - B2 IEME T
REERHER X EREZ (B S

e

UTRIEERBEEZREELK
BINBEPZWmz AT (BRI E
2HT)

2015 2015

—E—RE —E-RF

HK$°000 HK$°000

BETT BT T
Hong Kong (place of domicile) & (FT1EHD) 258,956 255,581 29,439 29,705
Macau B 61,313 61,509 4,626 2,410
320,269 317,090 34,065 32,115

Information about a major customer

Revenue from one customer of the Group’s property
investments segment amounted to HK$5,175,000 (2014:
HK$6,900,000) which represented more than 10% of the
Group’s revenue.

EH—BEXEEFFMNER
RERNEBMERES B2 — %E)ﬁ
2 W BB E5,175,0000 (= Z —

£ B %6,900,0007T) - *E;?ﬁézk%
B U 25810% °
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. RVERA

2015
—E-HEF

HK$’000
BT

Interest charges on finance leases RERAOFEFRZ 30 15
Interest charges on bank loans RITERZF BT 4,895 4,852

4,925 4,867

8. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8.  BrEr458i it Al

2015
—E-HE

HK$’000
BT

(Loss)/Profit before income tax is arrived  BRFF{S 5 AT (B8 ), % FI2

at after charging/(crediting): mnk(GEA)TFIER %
HIER

Amortisation of prepaid land lease T8 £ b 7R & BB S

payments 123 123
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERRETE

equipment 837 974
Auditors’ remuneration Z S BB & 619 617
Employee benefit expenses (note 11) R BEFIF 2 (F3E11) 27,571 25,053
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - REKEEZEE

plant and equipment - 1
Provision for impairment on loans JEWE 2 BB

receivable 1,000 6
Rentals received/receivable from Bl U EMERS

investment properties less direct BB ¥ 2 1 #5646,0007T

outgoings of HK$646,000 (ZE—m4F -

(2014: HK$650,000) 78 #650,0007T ) (10,914) (10,268)
Operating lease charges in respect of: THRBEZEEHAOFL -

— Buildings —EF 3,422 3,414

— Motor vehicles and equipment —RENERE 468 606

Exchange loss, net b X B85 58 10,673 5,119
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9.  FriEHiBH X

2015

—E-AHE

HK$°000

BT T

Income tax expense comprises: e e :

Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax BNERTHIE — B AR S 103 -
Deferred tax (note 28) BTG I 302 252
405 252

The Group is subject to Hong Kong profits tax which
is calculated at 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profit for the year. For the year ended 31 December
2014, no Hong Kong profits tax was provided as the relevant
group entities either did not derive any assessable profit in
Hong Kong or had unused tax losses brought forward for offset
against the assessable profits of last year.

Pursuant to the tax rules and regulations of Macau, the
subsidiaries incorporated and operated in Macau are liable to
Macau Profits Tax at the rate of 12% (2014: 12%).

REBMEBHBZEENER  REERE
ABEMIE16.5%MEFTE(ZE—
F:16.5%) HE-_ZT—NFE+_-A
Z+—HLEFE AR HESEEERE
WEAESEETMERFEF - X
NABALEHRBEBBREEZFZE
REEF  MATERPTIERERAIES
EFIS R RAE -

RFRPIR SRR AR - PORPIFE
MRS R & 2 B A RIZAER12% (=
T4 12%) 2 R R BRRPIFEF
B o
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 9. fr8mibdz (&)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting AT HE(EBB), & fiEE
(loss)/profit at applicable tax rate is as follows: AR ZHEERNT -
2015
—E—-RF
HK$’000
BETT
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BRATISELAT(E518) % F (18,038) 15,361
Tax at the statutory rate of 16.5% NEBEERE16.5%
(2014: 16.5%) in Hong Kong ZZ—HF : 16.5%)
FTE 2 HIE (2,976) 2,535
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries 7EE A EEREE 7
operating in other jurisdictions MB AR TR E 228 495 (94)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR 2 RIS E 2,250 3,016
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue FEEFRTUA Z TS & (2,313) (6,178)
Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised REEHHBAFE
tax losses utilised this year RERT AR B MG E (303) (689)
Tax losses not recognised as deferred AERBRLEHBEEZ
tax assets HiGEE 3,372 1,844
Others HAh (120) (282)

Income tax expense TS i X 405 252
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(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based
on the loss attributable to the owners of the Company
of HK$19,132,000 (2014: profit of HK$14,489,000) and
the weighted average number of 307,078,000 (2014:
303,626,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to basic loss per share as the
outstanding share options had anti-dilutive effect on the basic
loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2015.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the calculation of
diluted earnings per share is based on the profit attributable
to the owners of the Company of HK$14,489,000 and the
weighted average of 309,896,000 ordinary shares outstanding
during the year, after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings
per share is calculated based on the weighted average of
303,626,000 ordinary shares in issue during the year plus the
weighted average of 6,270,000 ordinary shares deemed to be
issued at no consideration as if all the Company’s outstanding
share options had been exercised.

10.

T (e18) 2R
BRER(ER) /B TBREAR R
2B ANELEIB AR 19,132,000 7T
ZE—OF ¢ & A ¥ 14,489,000
7C) M EFEANE #17,2307,078,000/% (=
T — 04 : 303,626,0000% ) L@~
InEFHEEE -

BELSSREAEBERELAE AR
RBE-ZF—AF+-_A=1T—81t
FE KTEBREEREECE -

HE-_Z-—NF+-_A=+—HIHF
B BREERFNDIRERAR ZHE
A A FEAhm F) B % 14,489,000 7T & 5t
FTEE#EBTEBRCEEIELA
Big 7 FNEITIEINRE309,896,000
E®BAR 2 IEFHEETE - REtHE
FREBEZN AR 2 T ERINEF
BETYIR I N B #17,2308,626,000
AR AR 2 INAE S BT i A R A
ZEHBMARTEBREDETFEMR
A5 EE 21T 26,270,0000% Li@AL 2
NEFHIHETE -
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11.

12.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 11. 18 EfEA B Z
2015 2014
—E-&8F —E-lF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BEET T
Salaries, allowances and staff benefits e SRR KRB TRA 25,577 23,567
Commission ke 527 469
Retirement benefit costs RRAEF A AR 498 480
Share option expense (note 30) FE AR X (P 3E30) 969 537
27,571 25,053

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
regulated by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
in Hong Kong, with effect from 1 December 2000, the Group
participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF scheme”) operated by an approved
trustee in Hong Kong and makes contributions for its eligible
employees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income. The cap of monthly relevant
income is increased from HK$25,000 to HK$30,000 from
1 June 2014. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

Total contributions paid by the Group into the MPF Scheme
and recognised as an expense during the year, including
contributions to the directors, amounted to HK$498,000
(2014: HK$480,000). No forfeited contribution is available for
reducing the Group’s existing level of contributions (2014: nil).

12.

AR AR A
BEELEEELETIEREN 2B H
MABSEHEKRN(ZEZTEEF+AH
—HRER) AEELS2EBEFERY
EREARZZEFMAELSRIKET
FFEI([®RESTE]) BAEREE
MK RIEBRESFE - BEERERE
B EZREEBBWAZ5%MZETE
Mk WEXETAMBEBWA LRATH
fRe-SgARBRALRE-Z—MF
SNA—BRERBE25000TENES
#£30,0007T ° Ma%aT 8l 2 KBV E 5
E °

AEBZEESTEERAB(RES
NZEEZHR) BB 498,000 (=
T — U4 : B#480,0007T) B R A F
EHRAEFAS - BESNER/RATH
BAOAREBMER BB (ZE—T
Fm)o
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13. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND 13, FESME s B A &
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (@ E=#M2
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and ENEENESZHMeBEN
payable to the directors are as follows: T
Employee
Salariesand  Discretionary ~ Retirement  share option
Fees  allowances bonus*  benefit costs expense Total
e EeREM MR BUBNHA ERBRERX Eh

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT BETT BRI BRTR BRTR

Year ended 31 December 2015 BZ-E-TE{CR

St-ALEE
Executive Directors Hi7EE
Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel SRARE 120 2,766 2,000 6 - 4,802
Mr. Tsang Chiu Ching CRHTE 768 2472 2,000 38 - 5,218
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia YPEmat 600 2,424 2,000 30 969 6,023
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Fvans Tania KBELL - 950 200 48 - 1,198
Independent Non-Executive BUuTES
Directors
Mr. Hui Yan Kt FARTE 40 - - - - 40
Mr. Wong Tak Ming Gary BEREE 40 - - _ _ 40
Mr. Au Chi Wal Edward BEREE 40 - - - - 40
1,608 8,612 6,200 122 969 17,511
Year ended 31 December 2014 BE2-_T-ME+-A
“+-BLEE
Executive Directors HrEE
Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel BIRR kL - 2,646 2,000 6 - 4,652
Mr. Tsang Chiu Ching SRRLE - 2,844 1,600 3 - 4,482
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia oy e - 2,784 2,000 30 537 5,351
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania FEELL - 888 200 46 - 1,134
Independent Non-Executive BUkHTES
Directors
Mr. Hui Yan Kit TAERE 30 - - - - 30
Mr. Wong Tak Ming Gary EERLE 30 - - - - 30
Mr. Au Chi Wal Edward BEEAE 30 - - - - 30
0 9,162 5,800 120 537 16,709
* The discretionary bonus is performance-related with the basis * WIBEARTMEEGETEZ

determined by the Remuneration Committee. AR IFH o
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13. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

None of the directors waived or has agreed to waive
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014.

Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group include four (2014: four) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above and the emoluments paid and payable to the
remaining one (2014: one) highest paid individual are as
follows:

13. R Seds #i A+

(%)

(a)

(b)

EEME(E)

HE 22— RAEK_ZT—NF
+-A=+—BItFE TE&
EEREXREREEHE -

hEEEHFMAL

BE_E—RE+_A=+—
AEFE  AEEREZRH
AT B ENE(ZZE—m4F
ME)EE - HMeB#HN EX
ZHWMA - BN REMHT —
F(ZE—NNF: —R)BeH
MALZBEmT :

2015
—E—RF

HK$’000
BET T

Salaries, allowances and e M ERHEMER

other benefits
Retirement benefit costs RGBT A

866 817
40 38

906 855
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13. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND 13, FE S s B A &
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (%8)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) EEESHFMALE)
The emoluments of these remaining one (2014: one) BTI—Z(ZE—NF: —5)
highest paid individual fell within the following band: EEagMATZBENF AT
#HE -

Emolument bands B < &=

Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z 281 ,000,0007T 1 1
During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, HE-ZT-—HFER=-FT—NF
no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the +—A=Z+—HLFE A&
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an BIRZFEAME T EMRME
inducement to join the Group or upon joining the Group ERhEERTHAL  BEA
or as compensation for loss of office. MAXREESMARERE 2

H2E) - IERBERZIE



104 CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A A T B AR M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2015 « B ZE - E—HF+—H=1+—HI F&

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. W€ - B Mot

At 1 January 2014 RZE-ME-A—-H
Cost AR 2,908 3,919 4,463 1,290 12,580
Accumulated depreciation 2ihE (383) 2,761) (4.214) (1,056) (8,414)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,525 1,158 249 234 4,166
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z-IF

+ZA=+—BLFE
Opening net carrying amount EREFE 2,525 1,158 249 234 4,166
Additions nE - - 176 - 176
Written off i = = (1) = (1)
Depreciation ik (76) (542) (154) (202) (974)
Closing net carrying amount FREHFE 2,449 616 270 32 3,367
At 31 December 2014 RZE-REF

+-R=1-H
Cost KA 2,908 3919 4,583 1,290 12,700
Accumulated depreciation 2EME (459) (3,303) (4,313) (1,258) (9,333)
Net carrying amount FEEE 2,449 616 270 32 3,367
Year ended 31 December 2015 HZ-F-1%

TZA=+-HILEE
Opening net carrying amount FNREFAE 2,449 616 270 32 3,367
Additions NE - - 115 524 639
Depreciation bk (76) (485) (140) (136) (837)
Closing net carrying amount FREmTE 2,373 131 245 420 3,169
At 31 December 2015 R-E-1E

+ZA=1+-H
Cost AR 2,908 3,919 4,502 1,814 13,143
Accumulated depreciation ZEME (535) (3,788) (4,257) (1,394) (9,974)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,373 131 245 420 3,169
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y2~ B Kkt (58)
(CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2015, a motor vehicle with net book N-ZE—FAE+-_A=+—H0 " EH
value of HK$420,000 (2014: HK$32,000) had been held FEAB K 420,000T (= F — U -
under finance lease. The capital value of the motor vehicle BEB2000) ZRENREBERE S
at the inception of lease amounted to HK$524,000 (2014: AFH - AENHBRAER 2EKRE
HK$604,000). B HES24,000(ZF—HF - B
604,0007T) °
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. HE&EYE
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEETIT
Fair value AF{E
At 1 January n—HA—H 309,900 279,700
Net change in fair value* N EEE)FE" 3,500 30,200
At 31 December HW+=—BA=+—H 313,400 309,900
* Disclosed as “Fair value gain on investment properties” in the " ERIREEZABRAREZ [RENRZA

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Group’s investment properties are measured using the fair
value model and are leased to third parties under operating
leases to earn rental income, further details of which are set out
in note 34(a).

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
31 December 2015 by ROMA Appraisals Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer, on an open market,
existing use basis.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties has been categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS13 Fair value measurement.
All of the fair values of the investment properties as at
31 December 2015 is level 3 (2014 level 3) recurring fair value
measurement, which uses significant unobservable inputs in
arriving at the fair values. There is no transfers between level 1
and level 2, or transfers into or out of level 3 during the current
year or in prior year.

AN KR

REBIREMERARNFERE T
Nt RIEERHOMBETE=F I
MW A - BEAE —2PHBHEHRN
FEE34(a)

BUYUAEREEFEMES RBFT
HERAFRER-_E—HE+_-A
—t+t—AERBARMBZBEFREE
EHAREB 2 HREMELETET TG

AEEREMEZATEFE B9
BRZEATVEERL(EZRTEUK
BELRF1IBRATFEAE) - R -F
—hAFEt+-A=t—HB FMBERED
EZRAVERE=ZE(ZT—NF: F
—BRREAFERE  FEAFE
HEEREATAIBEREARE -1
AERSIE—FE F-EBERE_E
ZEAEmEH  TEEAREHE=
B(—Z—mF: &) -
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15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair values as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 are determined
using direct comparison approach. Fair values are based
on recent market information about prices for comparable
properties with significant adjustments for any differences in
the characteristics of the Group’s properties.

Details about the valuation inputs are as follows:

15. B&EW (4)

ZE-RAFRZ-ZFTE—WNFE+ZA
=+ —BzZzRAFEEREELEE
BE > AFENREBELHBENAILE
WMEZTHEERNBKE  UHAEE
MEZFOZAMEZEERERAE -

HEBEZFHBEHINT

Range of
Properties Location Level Valuation technique  Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs
ES g ER hERR TUEEHALE TTRRR HE EE
Residential properties Hong Kong 3 Direct comparison Discount/Premium on quality 8% to 4%
approach and characteristics of (2014: -11% to 19%)
properties
FENE & 3 BRI AMEERREEENR 6B -8%F4%
(ZZ-MF : -11%Z19%)
A boutique hotel Hong Kong 3 Direct comparison Discount/Premium on quality 5% to 5%
approach and characteristics of (2014: -5% to0 40%)
properties
BmBE & 3 BRI ANEERRBEENE BB -5%Z5%
(Z2—\F : -5%Z240%)
Aretail shop Macau 3 Direct comparison Discount/Premium on quality -5% to 0%
approach and characteristics of (2014: -5% 10 25%)
properties
ZEHH )i 3 ERUBA AMEERRAEENE 6B -5%Z0%
(ZZ-F : -5%225%)
Office premises Macau 3 Direct comparison Discount/Premium on quality -5% 10 5%
approach and characteristics of (2014: -20% to 15%)
properties
NS )i 8 BRI AMEERRBEENE BB  -5%ZF5%

(ZZ-—MF : 20%Z15%)
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

Higher premiums or discounts for differences in the quality and
characteristics of the Group’s properties and the comparables
would result in correspondingly higher or lower fair values.

The fair value measurement is based on the highest and best
use of the investment properties, which does not differ from
their actual use.

As at 31 December 2015, certain investment properties with
carrying amount of approximately HK$278,400,000 (2014:
HK$277,000,000) were pledged to secure the banking facilities
granted to the Group as further detailed in note 27.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

15. B&EWSE (K1)

RARBEMERALBYEZERR
RFEEZRMEzBSREXTEHE
BREREEAREZAFE -

RNFEDRBREVEN TSR K
REMABE  WREEEREYE
=

R-ZE—RE+-_A=+—H  E@A
B %) 5 B1278,400,0000( —ZF — Y
£ B#277,000,0007T) 2 & TERE
MEBEBIEBEREITEEZR
7 BEE— B ENMEE2T -

16. FEAT L HuAH B HIAE

2015
—E-fF
HK$’000
BET T
Opening net carrying amount FHREFE 3,946 4,069
Amortisation charge for the year REEZHHE A (123) (123)
Closing net carrying amount FAREEFE 3,823 3,946
As at 31 December Rnt+=-—A=+—8
Cost (D% 4,687 4,687
Accumulated amortisation RETEEH (864) (747)
Net carrying amount BREFE 3,823 3,946
Analysed as: DT -
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,700 3,823
Current assets MENEE 123 128

3,823 3,946

107



108

CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A A T B AR M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2015 « #ZE - E—HF+ = H=1—HILF&F

17.

18.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS

17.

] 2 B

2015
—E-HE

HK$’000
ik i e

Listed equity investments in Hong Kong, R&® Fm 2 RAKE -

at fair value BAFE

18,129 20,924

The Group’s listed equity investments in Hong Kong are
held for long-term and are non-trading in nature. Fair values
of these listed equity investments have been measured as
described in note 37.1(iv).

LOANS RECEIVABLE

18.

AEEBREBZEITBRAKREDE
HEE BIIEBEEHE - HUOKE
37AWFTil - ZELTRAEE R
FEETFE -

R i 5K

2015

—E-HEF

HK$’000

BETT
Loans receivable — unsecured JE U E R — A I 39,930 32,895
— secured —FiE - 1,000
Less: Provision for impairment T R E R (1,000) (1,706)
Loans receivable, net BKRETR - F5 38,930 32,189
Less: Amounts due within one year B —F R B ER (1,943) (2,389)
Amounts due after one year —F 1 Z|HiFhzE 36,987 29,800

The loans receivable bear interest at fixed annual rates ranging
from 4% to 24% (2014: 4% to 22%). The repayment terms of
the loans are negotiated on an individual basis.

FEWE FIZBE EFF 4% E24% (=
T—MF 4% F22%)5T 8 c BERZE
TR Bl B R RS ©
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LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
Impairment provision of HK$1,000,000 (2014: HK$1,706,000)
has been made for the loan due from one customer (2014:
two customers) who is in financial difficulty. The loans from
two customers with impairment provision made amounting
to HK$1,706,000 as at 31 December 2014 were declared as
uncollectable during the year and thus the loans were written
off during the year.

18.

JRE W R K (48

ER—&(ZE—NF : mE) LA
WERE2RBPHERZERELE
#1,000,000C( — 2 —WH4F : B
1,706,0007C ) Z R E#EE - B 1EW
EREZMEBEEFPFERR T —NEF
+ZA=Z+— 8 A% 51,706,000
T ERFARRES BEFRKRE -
BRERF RS -

The maturity profile of the above loans (net of provision) at the RIMEHK - L ER(INGEER)
end of reporting period, which is analysed by the remaining ZEHERERNEERB A2
periods to their contractual maturity dates, is as follows: FIABBSTAT
2015 2014
—F-I1%F —TmF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
On demand REREE - _
Three months or less ={EA AR 581 247
Over three months but less than one year =AM FE—FER 1,362 2,142
In one to two years —EME 27,787 2,413
Over two years RFIA 9,200 27,387
38,930 32,189

Loans receivables (net of provision) at the end of the reporting
period which are neither past due nor impaired relate to a
number of borrowers. The Group has developed long-term
business relation with majority of the relevant customers with
outstanding loan balance at the end of reporting period and
all of them have no recent history of default. To minimise
credit risk, the directors assess background and financial
condition of customers on regular basis. Based on the above
assessment, the directors consider that impairment provision
is not necessary in respect of the net carrying amount of loans
receivable at the end of reporting period.

RIEHR - SoRE B SREZ B
ER(NRBER) DERETERAR
o AREDERBONHKEMARAK
BEEFREHcARTEPEYRYIZE
TSRAR - M % 2 3030 &R B R ARED
% ABEERBRBRERE EFF
HABEP 2ER MMBRR - RE
LaFFfE  EERA/RBEHR - &
7R T B W B R 2 R T DB 1R R (B
o
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19. INVENTORIES 19. 74
2015
—E-HF
HK$°000
BT T
Consumable stocks ARAREE 53 53
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in BEEKE51,000L(ZF—HF &
cost of sales amounted to HK$651,000 (2014: HK$668,000). ¥ 668,0007L) 2T ER AR A FH

X - Wat ASHERA
20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. FATEIIMR R B R+

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS R 2 A&

2015

—E—RF

HK$°000

BET T

Listed equity investments held BEIEEEZ LT
for trading, at fair value REARIEE - IRATE 4,896 5,693

The fair value of the listed equity investments have been ETRAKREZ AFEE LR

measured as described in note 37.1(iv). 37 A(V)ET= °
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21, 5 26 Ko HA R AT B 3k S TELAST
AND PREPAYMENTS IH
2015
—E-AE
HK$°000
BT T
Trade receivables EEREIIRR 8,367 10,208
Less: Provision for impairment B ORER A (281) (281)
Trade receivables, net EEEWIRIURE 8,086 9,927
Other receivables and deposits EfhE W R R RIRS 5,631 4,431
13,717 14,358
The Group’s trade receivables at the end of the reporting RIREBR  NEB 22 ERKER
period mainly represent the receivable balances in respect FTEARAEERELLES 2IBRHEE
of the Group’s stock broking business. The Group allows a WEE R - ASEA THESHEH
credit period up to the settlement dates of their respective REOBEABPRIEZEERAEAS
transactions (normally two business days after the respective RHBHEMEBELRXE) - EEKFRE
trade dates) except for margin client receivables which are BEFPHUBAREEREER -

repayable on demand.



112

CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 A B R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2015 » #Z - =

21.

—hFETZA=1—HIFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

The ageing analysis (based on invoice date) of the trade
receivables, net of provision for impairment, at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

21.

JithﬁeuiﬂEJ/\ FEAT
)

Eéi& Hﬂﬂi &2 AR SR (FNBRIBLE
B 2B DM RERAH T

T
%HF
‘)21

2015 2014
—E-RE —T-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BEETIT

Repayable on demand BEENKEER
— margin receivables* — PR ST R 5K 6,942 7,254
0-30 days 0%30H 527 2,446
31-60 days 31E60H 22 42
61-90 days 61290H 35 -
Over 90 days 90H KA 560 185
8,086 9,927

* The Group holds certain listed equity securities of clients as collateral * AEBEBERPZET LWRAFS
over these trade receivables. ERILEEERIBRR 2R m o

Receivables from margin clients are interest-bearing at 6.75%
to 18% (2014: 6.25%) per annum, whereas receivables from
cash clients amounting to HK$530,000 (2014: HK$2,924,000)
are interest-bearing at 7% to 9% (2014: 8.25%) per annum.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews trade
receivables for evidence of impairment on both an individual
and collective basis. Included in the provision for impairment of
trade receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of HK281,000 (2014: HK$281,000) with a gross
carrying amount of HK$281,000 (2014: HK$281,000). The
individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers that
were in default or delinquent in payments.

REFREF ZEBRIEIRE.75%E
18%( ZZ — WU : 6.25%) 2 FF| %
FPE - MRERSEF, ZEKIES
5%%5300007%(:"—@@ DB
2,924,0007L) * AR 7% EQ% (=&
— P04 - 8.25%)2$%'J*+a‘|',’§'\ °

%

MEREHKR - NEBIZER RE
BEALEZRHNEERRERZBER
Fo AERWERZREREBEIEE
B #281,000C (ZF —UF : HE
281,0007T ) 2 & Rl (B < & 3 FE Uk AR
M HARREEAB281,0007T
(ZZ—[4F : B¥281,0007T) © @R
,JFMEZ 5 25 JE W BR SR B3 4B X ok e ER A
RZBFER -
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

The ageing analysis (based on due date) of the trade
receivables excluding receivables due from margin customer
that are past due but are not considered to be impaired is as
follows:

BHA1Z=30H

BHAB1E60H
A HI61Z=90H
#EAQ0H A |k

1-30 days past due
31-60 days past due
61-90 days past due
Over 90 days past due

21.

B S e oAb RE WSO R S T A
A (41)

B BB R R AL 2 % e MR
RTREBRUTRERSZHE) 2K
AT GREISE) T -

2015
—E-fHF

HK$’000
BET T

527 2,446
22 42
35 =

560 185

1,144 2,673

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a number of diversified customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to customers that have a good payment record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

1) R 280 B3 3K R ORL (B 2 2 3 T UK R K
MHY EBIERERCHEZETOHE
FBH-

B8 BB RIRE 2 & 5 I WBR K TS
REXREERERIFNREHEZE
F-REBELR EEEMLRE &
AR EH/BELRERE  RAR
EEEAEZMBEEREYRZAFHERD
AR A A 2R o
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22.

23.

24.

TRUST BANK BALANCES HELD ON 22. REF A ZAGTHRITH
BEHALF OF CUSTOMERS
The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with a REBENERELLEBRBE  R—
licensed bank in Hong Kong to hold clients’ monies in EABBETEEE L ETEFPUE
conducting its stock broking business. In the consolidated MEFPHIE - RIZEVBHRREFR -
statement of financial position, the Group has classified AREEERPRESEARBEER
the clients’ monies as trust bank balances held on behalf TREFPEHEZEFRITES TR
of customers under current assets and recognised the mEHEREBTNERENEZRPE ZMEE
corresponding trade payables to the respective customers CSEEMER AEBAREREFPXK
under current liabilities. The Group is allowed to retain some TERE a2 A8 - ARG
or all of the interest earned on the clients’ monies. The Group AEERIEFEANER ZEF
is not allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own
obligations.
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 23. DHEHERATE
Pledged bank deposits at the end of the reporting period REEBARZDEIBRITER - B
represent time deposits which are denominated in RMB with AEBABZEEHE - RELDH
original maturity periods of 6 to 12 months. The deposits earn BIRAB6ZE12ME A - ZEFFIRN T
interest at fixed rate ranging from 2.80% to 4.20% per annum 2.80% £ 4.20%( —ZF— M4 : 2.50%
(2014: 2.50% to 3.30% per annum) and have been pledged to 2£3.30%) K EE FF R HEF L - I
secure certain bank facilities granted by a bank (note 27). OEERTE - URE—FMETREZH
FRITEE (5E27) ©
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 24. B & RERATH R
2015 2014
—F-1F —FmF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T ook e
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFERS 24,356 23,271
Short-term bank deposits REHARTTIE 107,621 133,991
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTEEER 131,977 157,262
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(CONTINUED)

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposits rates. Short-term bank deposits are placed
with banks with original maturity periods range from 7 days to
12 months (2014: 1 month to 12 months) and earn interest at
market interest rates ranging from 0.25% to 4.50% per annum
(2014: 0.28% to 3.80% per annum).

TRADE PAYABLES

At the end of reporting period, the ageing analysis (based on
invoice date) of the Group’s trade payables is as follows:

24.

23.

Bl e sRAT R B (A

BITREESHBTERNENTE
FIRET B - MHERITERAFE RN E
17 RAZEEBRENF7TEE121EA
—ZE-MF - AEAAE12@EA) - K&
MHHENFLHF0.25%24.50% (=
T[4 FF0.28%%E3.80% ) B E
FB o

BRI
REE IR - REE 2 B EEAER
ZREAFRERAMMT :

2015

—E-AHE

HK$°000

BETT

Repayable on demand — Trust bank REKREE-—BEPTFRZE

balances for funds placed by customers & ZIEFEIRTTAE#R 11,315 5,919
0-30 days 0£30H 2,678 3,026
31-60 days 31E60H 32 41

14,025 8,986
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26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE 26. [EFH A RKYE
LEASES
The analysis of the obligations under finance leases is as BEMAFESI T -
follows:
2015
—E—RF
HK$°000
BET T
Total minimum lease payments: wIEHS AR
Due within one year —FRNE|H 230 136
Due in the second to fifth year inclusive — £ _FFF R F
(REEREME)EH 385 101
615 237
Less: Future finance charges W ARRELE B A (74) (26)
Present value of finance lease obligations &i& 6 4 E¥EIR(E 541 211
Present value of finance lease obligations: FE&EM LI AEIRE :
Due within one year included in —F AR EBII AREEE
current liabilities 203 121
Due in the second to fifth year inclusive FEEFERF(BIEEEM
included in non-current liabilities F)FEN S AIEREBE 338 90
541 211

The Group has entered into finance leases in respect of the
purchases of motor vehicles. The lease period is 5 years and
interest rates are 2.45% to 2.75% (2014: 2.45%) per annum.
The leases have no terms of renewal or any contingent rental
provisions.

REBMBEATHILMEMLY -
HART  REREMANITHAZSF
R 52.45%FE2.75% ( — B — U4 :
2.45%) A 4B T IE TR S AT ] ok
RIS IEX »
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27. BANK BORROWINGS (SECURED) 27, SATHREE CHHK)

2015
—E-AHE

HK$’000
BT

Current liabilities REBEE

Portion of term loans due for repayment ZBR—EREE 7 FHERZ

within one year 15 200,131 171,131
Portion of term loans due for repayment B 2R ERER G Z
after one year which contain a ER—FREEZ
repayment on demand clause TEHE R Z 215D 47,220 78,350
247,351 249,481
The bank borrowings, including the term loans repayable on RITEE(RIEERERKEECEHE
demand, are carried at amortised cost. None of the portion ORI AR o BIETEAIG R —
of term loan due for repayment after one year which contain FR/EEZ2DERERBEER(MEA
a repayment on demand clause (and therefore classified as kR EARSEE) 2ERN—FREE

current liability) is expected to be settled within one year. 2 EHIE RIS o
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27. BANK BORROWINGS (SECURED)
(CONTINUED)
The analysis of the Group’s bank borrowings by scheduled
repayment is as follows:

AT (48 (A7)

2 R R B 2
DT ¢

2015
—E-REF
HK$’000
BET T
Portion of term loan due for repayment ER—FRNEEZ
within one year TEHEZHZ D 200,131 171,131
Portion of term loans due for repayment 7B —FZ BB FHER
after one year (note (a)) #H (H5E(a))
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFENR 2,133 31,133
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBREBERFR 42,333 14,983
After 5 years HF% 2,754 32,234
247,351 249,481

Notes:

The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreements and ignore the effect of any notice for repayment
on demand.

The Group’s bank borrowings as at the end of reporting period, all
denominated in HK$, bear interest at HIBOR plus 1.20% to 2.20% or
prime rate minus 2.95% (2014: HIBOR plus 1.20% to 2.20% or prime
rate minus 2.95%) per annum.

The Group’s bank borrowings are secured by certain of the Group’s
investment properties and bank deposits with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$278,400,000 (2014: HK$277,000,000) (note 15)
and HK$118,736,000 (2014: HK$121,212,000) (note 23) respectively,
and corporate guarantee given by the Company to the extent of
HK$247,351,000 (2014: HK$249,481,000).

GEE

ZEERNRETREE R BAME 25
EEE R A E AT HEMIREREE
BHZEE -

RIBEEIR - NEBZRITEEUE
HEHE) - DRIRBEBRITRERENE
B1.20% F2.20% =k 1% & 8 5 Fl TR F
B2.95% (=T —PN4F : RRITAERE
e B1.20% £ 2.20% 5% 1% & 2 B F R
2.95% )58 o

AEBZBTEETNETREAED A
#)5% 278,400,000 7T ( =& — P4 4F -
7% & 277,000,000 7T ) (K 3£ 15) K&
#118,736,000 L (=T — U : B
121,212,0007T) (FEH23) 2 AL B E
MERBITER  UREAQRELEZ L
PR &7 %247,351,0007T( — T — U4 :
75¥249,481,0007T) Z A BHEIRIEE IR o
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28. DEFERRED TAX

Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and their
movements during the current and prior year are as follows:

R A A1 TH
AEERAERENBEFERRB R
EREEENRESH ZFBEOT

At 1 January 2014 RZZE—MFE—H—H 1,337 1,412 2,749
Charged to profit or loss (note 9) R FHK 2 1E
(Mt5E9) - 252 252
At 31 December 2014 and RZZE—MF
1 January 2015 +=—A=+—BX
—E—FFE—HA—A 1,337 1,664 3,001
Charged to profit or loss (note 9) Bz IR 2 XI8
(M$5E9) 302 - 302
At 31 December 2015 R-E—RE
+=HA=+-8 1,639 1,664 3,303

At 31 December 2015, the Group had tax losses of
approximately HK$229,890,000 (2014: HK$210,643,000). No
deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of such
tax losses as it is uncertain whether future taxable profit will
be available for utilising the tax losses. Under the current tax
legislation, the tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

R-EBE—FFE+_A=+—0 K&
[E 2 Fi 18 518 49 & 78 229,890,000
— T[4 : #E#210,643,0007T) °
FRF R RERETE R 2R AT B FE SR B m A o
FRAMEBE RRETERZEH
BHEBBRRARCHREELEE - RIEB A
ZRIEER - FIBES BRI R o
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29. SHARE CAPITAL

29. &R

Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2014, RZE—mFE—H—H -

31 December 2014 and —E—E+_—A

31 December 2015 =t+—Bk=_F—A%F

+=-—A=+—H 2,000,000,000 400,000

Issue and fully paid: ERTRAR
At 1 January 2014 MR-_E—NFE—F—H 303,609,597 60,722
Shares issued under exercise of BIEREREETEETZ

share options (note 30) A% (Fft3E30) 3,032,000 606
At 31 December 2014 and R-ZE—mE+—_H=+—H

1 January 2015 M_ZE—HF—H—H 306,641,597 61,328
Shares issued under exercise of RIFEAREETF I 2

share options (note 30) f& 1 (FIEE30) 3,064,000 613
At 31 December 2015 N-ZE—RF+-_A=+—8H 309,705,597 61,941
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SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company pursuant to a resolution passed
at the annual general meeting held on 22 May 2009 for
the primary purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
the participants who have contributed to the Group and
encouraging participants to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole. The board of directors may,
at its discretion, offer to directors, employees of any member
of the Group, any advisors and service providers of any
member of the Group, options to subscribe for shares in the
Company at a price not less than the highest of: (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant of the option; (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant
of the options; and (i) the nominal value of a share. A nominal
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant
of the options by each of the relevant grantees. The options
vest on the condition that the grantee is a participant of the
Share Option Scheme from the date of options grant to the
commencement date of the exercisable period of the options
and the participant is not required to achieve any performance
targets before any share options grander under the Share
Option Scheme can be exercised.

The share-based employee compensation is to be settled by
the issue of the Company’s ordinary shares. The Group has
no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the
share options other than by issuing the Company’s ordinary
shares.

30.

DUy S A5 2 Fli
ARABRER-_ZTEZENFRA-_T=
ARy REREAS FRBY RS
RN B ((BREE ) -
ZERREHE Y T BEM RSB
ERYAEEELEE Y 28E - )
REMmeREAAATRERE Y &K
BARMAESAATRERG 2B
o EEeTMERAEETAKE
AFZEE  ES  URASELM
A B A T 2 A A R P % R S £t 7 0
TR ELNREARRRRD - REE
BTER T =Eh 2 BEE : ()JAA
FRG B L BRIEE B EY Y
KR ()RR BER L EREY
BATRERS B EY X2 Tl
B Ri)RmmE - SHEBAR AR
P B 7 BERRAERS © BT T
TRURRE - BREZ BBIEES
TR AR T 1 B B R 7 B A 1T
FHRIRZ B AIEMERE - BAE#H
BREE Y 2EA  T2EAEA
AR 18 B AR A £ B 9 1 > faT B AR
AEATE AT BT A A R

UMDtz BEMERSAETAR
AEBRIMN - RETARTEAERK
S - ZNER B3 AT ] B (] o S R
BZRESHEERME
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30. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION 30. DAMAn A 2 M 1E (48)
(CONTINUED)
Movements of the share options during the reporting period RIS B N B AR AR 2 B S E N g
and their weighted average exercise prices are as follows: EHTEENT
2015
—E—RE
Weighted
average
Number exercise
of options price
InfEFEg
BREZA TEE
HK$
BT
Outstanding at 1 January R—RA—H#AR{TE 16,371,826 0.310 16,371,826 0.310
Granted B 3,064,000 0.720 3,032,000 0.451
Exercised BI7E (3,064,000) 0.720 (3,032,000) 0.451
Outstanding at 31 December A+—_A=+—H
B ARTTE 16,371,826 0.310 16,371,826 0.310
Exercisable at 31 December W+—_HA=+—H
A{TfE 16,371,826 0.310 16,371,826 0.310
The weighted average share price of the Company on the date RENBREREITHEE B 2ARA A0
of exercise of the options during the year was HK$0.910 (2014: EFHYRERBE0IIOT(ZE—T

HK$0.520). £ BH0.5200T) °
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30. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
(CONTINUED)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

30. DUBAn ST 2 i fE (48)

REBERRZRITEBRBZITEE
RATHEHMT

2015 —E-FHE
Granted on R-ZEENFERA 16,371,826 0.310 22 May 2009 - 21 May 2019
22 May 2009 e =y —EENERA=-+=HZE
“E-AFHAZ-t+—H

2014 —E—O&E
Granted on RZZEZNFHA 16,371,826 0.310 22 May 2009 — 21 May 2019
22 May 2009 —+t-—HEH —EENFRA-+-HZE

—E-NFRA=+—H

The options outstanding as at 31 December 2015 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.4 years (2014:
4.4 years).

The share options granted during the year and in prior year
have been determined using Black-Scholes Option Pricing
Model by an independent professional valuer at the date of
grant. The following are the key inputs to the model used:

RO ERER-_ZE—RE T A
S+—BZNMEFEBTEOE RS
BIAFE(ZZ—DF : 445F) o

REAREFRHB2BREZAFE
B 2BV EXGEMNE LB BR
BAaNx -—FMHEEERAE
EeoUATRZEBEEAERAZERE
ABIE

2015
—E-1F

Grant date KB
Exercise price 18
Expected life of share options BIRER S
Dividend yield B X
Risk-free interest rate mERF %

Expected volatility R IR

28 August 2015 23 April 2014
ZE-RENAZHNE ZE-EFNA=1+=H
HK$0.720 HK$0.451

B #0.720T BHE0.4517C

5 years 5 years

aE aEF

Nil Nil

: i

1.17% 1.42%

50.77% 46.35%
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30.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
(CONTINUED)

Expected volatility, determined based on a statistical analysis
of daily share prices over the last five years, and expected life
of share options, determined based on the historical data, may
not necessarily be the actual outcome.

The fair values of the share options granted during the year are
approximately HK$969,000 (2014: HK$537,000) which has
been recognised as share option expense (note 11) with the
corresponding balance credited to the share option reserve.
No liabilities were recognised as these were all equity-settled
share-based payment transactions.

The exercise of 3,064,000 share options during the year has
resulted in the increase in share capital and share premium
by HK$613,000 and HK$2,563,000 respectively, and the
decrease in share option reserve by HK$969,000. The exercise
of 3,032,000 share options during last year has resulted in the
increase in share capital and share premium by HK$606,000
and HK$1,299,000 respectively, and the decrease in share
option reserve by HK$537,000.

30.

DA ATy S A 2 f G (48)

BEBEZAFAEBRARERTERD
FEE 2 ARG - LARARIRBE B
BETCBRERTFHY  RLEX

FRELZEBREZAFENABE
#069,000 L ( — T — 4 : B
537,0007T) © EFER AR X (M
1) HEZEHT T ABRE R
H- -ARARRZHAURAGEE
BHONHRS M EEREE -

RERNTITES,064,0001) B2 E
& 72N B {5 17 5 (B 45 Bl 38 1078 #5613,000
TC N B2 563,0007T ¢ B8 B AE REE
BIJ B2l if 580 > 75 #5 969,000 7T ° FARTTIE
3,032,00017 HE & #E B BB R AR K % 15
i 1B 9 BIlE 08 5 606,000 7T M 7B 1
1,299,0007T T HE I 48 =6 45 BY B T Rk
& #537,0007T ©
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HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 31. 7 I F BE B AR L 35
FINANCIAL POSITION

2015
—E—RE
HK$’000
BETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RSB R A 2 s 32 49,800 49,800
Current assets REEE
Other receivables and prepayments  H b fE Y BE 3% % T8 3418 1,247 1,614
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U b B A =) TR 1B 207,836 180,150
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHER 111,619 133,892
320,702 315,656
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETBT B A B3k IE 78,413 61,805
Other payables and accruals HAth FE T AR SR R FE AT 5RIE 543 959
78,956 62,764
Net current assets REEETE 241,746 252,892
Net assets EEFRE 291,546 302,692
EQUITY B
Share capital R& 7N 29 61,941 61,328
Reserves b1 33 229,605 241,364
Total equity AR 291,546 302,692
On behalf of the directors REES

Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel
B RR
Director

EF

Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania
KEPE
Director

EF
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32. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

32.

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had direct and indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries:

Held directly:
EERH:

Century Legend Investments
Limited
HERFREBRAT

Century Legend Management
Limited

HERRERERAF

Century Legend Entertainment

Limited
HEREREBR AR

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company
AERLRE  ARAT

Hong Kong,

limited liability company
& BRAA
British Virgin Islands,

limited liability company

KBALES  ARAT

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBNEREER

Provision of properties
management services
in Hong Kong

REBRME
WRE R RS

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBREREER

W 2 A
RZZ—RAF+ZA=+—H A2
ARFETNIMBRR zBEE MEEE

=

63,000 ordinary shares
of US$0.01 each
BREBE0.0IET L
63,000 % i it

1,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$1,000,000

7 #1,000,0007T 2
1,000,000 8% & 378 A&

1 ordinary share
of US$1
1ET2IREBR

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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32. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 32. MHEAFFEE (4])
(CONTINUED)
Percentage
Principal activities of interest
Place of incorporation and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
NG )ig 2]
AR EH EMRLBHREAER  FEEBRLEEHH ERITRAFE ERzBML
Held indirectly:
B#ERE
Century Legend Finance Hong Kong, Provision of commercial 10,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
Limited limited liability company and personal loans in of HK$10,000,000
Hong Kong
HERRRMEBRAF B8 ARRA REBREEER 7##10,000,0007T.2 100%
LAER 10,000,0000% & &A%
Century Legend Securities Hong Kong, Stock broking in 20,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong of HK$20,000,000
HERREFBRAF BB ARRDA REBUZF #1%20,000,0007T 2 100%
BESLIRE 37 20,000,000 & i &
Century Legend Strategic Hong Kong, Investment holding in 10,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
Investments Limited limited liability company Hong Kong of HK$10,000,000;
5,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares™
of HK$5,000,000
HERRRBRERRAA B ARAQA REBUSREER 7#10,000,0007C.2 100%
10,000,0008% & 3@ :
7&%5,000,0007T 2
5,000,000/ & & F 18
RER D
Hong Kong Macau Trading Hong Kong, Trading of general 100 ordinary shares 100%
Limited limited liability company merchandises in Hong of HK$100
Kong
BRESER AR BE AR REBKS BE100TTZ 100%
—REAmES 100MR E Ak
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CONTINUED)

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

32.

Percentage
Principal activities of interest
Place of incorporation and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
NG )ig 2]
kL EMRLBHREAER FEEXBREEHH ERTRAFE EszAl
Held indirectly: (Continued)
B#ERE : (8
CL Entertainment Limited Hong Kong, Inactive 10,000 ordinary shares 100%
limited liability company of HK$10,000
HEREFR AT B8 ARRDA TEER 75#10,0007T.2 100%
10,000/ % B %
Headquarters Limited Hong Kong, Operation of a hair salon 150,000 ordinary shares 55%
limited liability company under the brand name of HK$150,000
of “Headquarters” in
Hong Kong
REBERAF B ARADA RERAMME 7##150,0007C.2 55%
[Headquarters | 150,0008% % 38 %
Century Legend Properties Hong Kong, Investment holding and 1 ordinary share 100%
Limited limited liability company property investments of HK$1
in Hong Kong
R ERRAR & ARARA) REBREREERK BEATT AR EER 100%
NERE
Simple Way Limited Hong Kong, Inactive 1 ordinary share 100%
limited liability company of HK$1
HEARANT B ARRDA Tmax BT AREBR 100%
Max Rise Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong, Investment holding and 1 ordinary share 100%
limited liability company property investments of HK$1
in Hong Kong
BERERR AT B - BRAR REBREREERR BT 100%
NERE 1L AR
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PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Percentage
Principal activities of interest
Place of incorporation and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
NG )ig 2]
AR EH EMRLBHREAER  FEEBRLEEHH ERITRAFE ERzBML
Held indirectly: (Continued)
BERE : ()
Hong Kong Macau Travel Hong Kong, Provision of travel 500,000 ordinary shares 100%
Limited limited liability company agency services in of HK$500,000
Hong Kong
BRIEERRAT BA  BRRA REBREIRITH RS 7 %500,0007T.2 100%
500,000/ & A%
Century Legend Properties Macau, Investment holding in Macau Pataca (‘MOP”) 100%
(Macau) Limited limited liability company Macau 25,000
taegRwECRM)ARRR B ARAF PR SR B R RFIH ([RPIH 1)25,0007 100%
CL San Kin Yip Property Macau, Property investments in MOP25,000 100%
Investment Limited limited liability company Macau
HERARENEREBRAR  RFY ARAA REFIRENERE JRPF%25,0007T 100%
CL MLO12 Property Macau, Property investments in MOP25,000 100%
Investment Limited limited liability company Macau
HEMLOIZNEREBRAR B BRAF REFIRENERE JBFI%25,0007T 100%
CL Pawn, Watch & Jewellery ~ Macau, Inactive MOP25,000 100%
Limited limited liability company
HRERERABARAR B - BRAA Tmax JRPT#25,0007T 100%

B EREER D B L S WU S
BANEE-35 E S e ORI )
ERBERAEBERHEASANE L

nEs
X7~

The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends
or to participate in any distribution in winding up. They carry no rights to
receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting.

BLEMBRBNFERS BITEAER

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year. =

o
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33.

RESERVES

Group

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Nature of the reserves is as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Capital reserve
Capital reserve of the Group represents:

(i) the difference between the nominal value of
share capital issued by the Company and the
nominal value of the share capital and the share
premium accounts of those companies forming
the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation
in 1993; and

(i) the reduction in issued share capital arising from
the cancelling of paid up capital to the extent of
HK$0.09 on each share of HK$0.1 in issue in
2001.

Revaluation reserve

Revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets and revaluation gain on self-occupied property
and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies in notes 3.8 and 3.11.

Share option reserve
Share option reserve has been set up in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 3.17.

33.

fof #h

REH
AEBRAEERBEFEZFHESR
BREHINRE S EEHRTIR -

EEEEWT -
(a) EBEXRRE
AEBZEXR RS

(b)

(c)

(i) ARABEBRITHRAEE
HEKRAEBZZER
ARE-NAN=F&H
BEHZBEAREERRKD
B EZR M

(ii) EHEHAMERAERE %
TR T
—FEBTRMHZ2ER
A S 0.1 7T BlRS
#0.097T °

BEfh#E

EHFEEEEITRLE MK
BEZRZFAAFEZHFENR
BEAMEZEGHKRETREN
8.8 KRBT 2 EETBUOREE ©

BREREE
BB RIEMEIATH
&2 BETBURRL o



AL (RED) AIRAF « —F—TFEFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B W05 AR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2015 * % —E—hF+ _—H=+—HIIF/Z

33. RESERVES (CONTINUED)
Company

33. fetifhi (&)
PN

At 1 January 2014 R-ZE-mE—f—AH 149,619 213,978 2,945 (186,059) 180,483
Profit for the year REEHE - - - 59,582 59,582
Share option granted (note 30) B R HERE(H730) - = 537 = 537
Share option exercised (note 30) B /7B EERRIE (HH:E30) 1,299 - (537) - 762
At 31 December 2014 and RZE-ME+=-A=+-BRK

1 January 2015 —2-1%-f-H 150,918 213,978 2,945 (126,477) 241,364
Loss for the year T~EEER = = = (14,322) (14,322)
Share option granted (note 30) BRI AR (F7E30) - - 969 = 969
Share option exercised (note 30) B3R EEMIE (F3E30) 2,563 - (969) - 1,504
At 31 December 2015 RZE-EF+-R=1-H 153,481 213,978 2,945 (140,799) 229,605

Contributed surplus of the Company represents: KANBIZEEHBEGIE -

(0

(i)

the difference between the underlying net tangible
assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company and
the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company
at the time of the group reorganisation referred to
above; and

the reduction in issued share capital arising from the
cancelling of paid up capital to the extent of HK$0.09 on
each share of HK$0.1 in issue in 2001.

(i)

(i

ARBPAMERB AR 2B
BEREEFBEARAR Lt
SEEARZDBITROEE
ZEB R

AR AEHEEITRA
B R—EF-FEHEITR
2 SR EEBE0.ATH AR
7 #0.097T ©
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34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
AND COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note
15) under operating lease arrangements with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years
(2014: one to four years). At the end of reporting period,
the Group had total future minimum lease receivables
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
falling due as follows:

34.

(a)

FH &0 22 Pp B3

ERBEEA
AEEBBEEEHEOTHELAE
HIGEWE (ME15) WEZ
AN F—ZE=F(-Z—m
F—EWF) c RREHRK -
R4 B R AE A BT S 2 AT
MEMRY)  AEBANRUATE
BB KR REBERER
BT

2015
—E-E8F

HK$’000
BET T

—&FR
FE_FEFERF

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

(BEEMEREER)

4,267 12,404

3,978 13,576

8,245 25,980

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. The leases run for an
initial period of one to five years (2014: one to five
years), with options to renew the lease terms at the
expiry dates or at dates as mutually agreed between the
Group and the respective landlords/lessors. None of the
leases include contingent rentals.

(b)

EREBEA

AEERBLEHROLZHEE
HETHMAZEYE - ZFAH
MERB—Z2RF (TN
Fi-ERF) LHEENER
BHAEEERMEEET H
BARRBEZRBSITE
e ZFHOBMESFALAR
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34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 34. REFHA L PR EURYE (481)
AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) As lessee (Continued) (b) EREBEAGE)
At the end of reporting period, the Group had total RIBEEAR - BB AT HEL
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 2y AEEARECHEYE
operating leases, in respect of the rented premises, RATE BB 2 KRR &EE
falling due as follows: EFIRBENT ¢
2015
—E-EHF
HK$°000
BT T
Within one year —FR 2,310 3,309
In the second to fifth year inclusive £ _—&F& 5 R4
(BEEMEFRIEEA) 3,047 779
5,357 4,088
35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. BAAEIE

2015
—E-HEF

HK$’000
BT

Commitments for the renovations of BIFTIR B2 7 e
investment properties
— contracted for but not provided —BEENEERER 1,605 =
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BH N2 5

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed BRZEVBRREMEBEBEEZRS

elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the NN FRNEEJNEREEA L

following significant transactions with related parties during the WITTHEARS

year:

(a) Compensation of key management personnel (a) FEEBABZEHMH
The directors are of the opinion that the key EFZRE TEEEASANAK
management personnel are the directors of the RAZEERETERSHHE
Company, details of whose emoluments are set out in B FEZ2HEFBIAER
note 13(a), and certain highest paid employees whose B 3E13(a) R M FE13(b) ©

remunerations are set out in note 13(b).

(b) Operating lease charges (b) KREHNEH

2015
—E-HE

HK$’000
ik i e

Rental for a motor vehicle paidto AU T ARISRE S

— Conba Management — R HEIEER AR AT

Consultant Limited 234 234
— Complex Investments Limited —EREBEKREEFRAA 216 216
— Nosie Boy (HK) Investments —%BREERA)ERAT

Limited - 156

450 606
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)
(b) Operating lease charges (Continued)
The operating lease charges are mutually agreed by the
Group and the contracting party.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel, director, is the beneficial
shareholder and director of Conba Management
Consultant Limited.

Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia, director, is the beneficial
shareholder and director of Complex Investments
Limited.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Ching, director, is the beneficial
shareholder and director of Nosie Boy (HK) Investments
Limited.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks, mainly
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management focuses on unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies applied by the
Group to mitigate these risks are set out below. The Group
currently does not have written risk management policies and
guidelines. However, the board of directors meets periodically
and cooperates closely with key management to analyse and
formulate strategies to manage and monitor financial risks
exposures in a timely and effective manner.

30.

37.
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(b) REHENERGR)
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FETRBRKRERE °

EEEMALERBEEERE
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. PAMSJEFE B K TR
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%)
(CONTINUED)
37.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities 371 BBEERAEGEZER
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets R ERRDBRREEEH
and liabilities recognised at the end of reporting period EErBEZEAEBES EN
are categorised as follows. See notes 3.11 and 3.18 Te-EBlem T AER N
for explanations on how the category of financial BHARBZAE  BRME
instruments affects their subsequent measurement. 3.11K%3.18 " A THRE Z#1E -
() Financial assets (i) MBEE
2015
—E-E8F
HK$’000
BET T
Available-for-sale financial assets A i Hi & ~ B & & 18,129 20,924
Financial assets at fair value RATFEYR KRR EZR
through profit or loss BRPEREIE B E 4,896 5,693
Loans and receivables: B R E BRI -
— Loans receivable —EIRER 38,930 32,189
— Trade and other receivables — &N H i FEURBR X 12,030 13,878
— Trust bank balances held —-REFFEZ
on behalf of customers ERERITAR 11,318 6,086
- Pledged bank deposits — BEBRITER 118,736 121,212
— Cash and bank balances — R4 NIRITES 131,977 157,262

336,016 357,244
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

37.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities measured at ~ IZEESER AT S 2

S5 Ja Fa

(%)

e VUS SiTie

371 HBEEREEZER(H)

(i)

A E

2015

—E-fHF

HK$’000
BET T

amortised cost: Wigats
— Trade and other payables — B R H A R BR R 25,771 23,012
- Bank borrowings (secured) —RITEE(FEM) 247,351 249,481
— Obligations under finance — REE A AR IE
leases 541 211
273,663 272,704
(iii)  Financial instruments not measured at (iii) WIHERAFEFTEZ
fair value SRIA
Financial instruments not measured at fair WIHERATFEFENS
value include loans receivable, trade and other BTABEEKER -
receivables, trust bank balances held on behalf BN HE bR R

of customers, pledged bank deposits, cash and
bank balances, trade and other payables, bank
borrowings and obligations under finance leases.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying
values of these financial instruments
approximate their fair values.

REPHA ZEFRTT
mer CEARTE
o BHe RBITHER
BRREMEMER
RITEE R EVE 4%

=

ERHEEHMNT  ZF5e
BMTAZEEEREAR
FEMEE -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(CONTINUED)

37.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

(iv)

Financial instruments measured at fair
value

The fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market
prices which is classified as level 1 financial
instruments.

There are no level 2 and level 3 financial
instruments during the year.

The following table provides an analysis of
financial instruments carried at fair value by level
of fair value hierarchy:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets and
liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices); and

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

37.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)
37.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)
(iv) Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Continued)
The financial assets measured at fair value in the
statement of financial position are grouped into
the fair value hierarchy as follows:

As 31 December 2015 R-E-—R&E+-A=1+—H

Financial assets at fair value BATEYRRNERRPE

through profit or loss BZHBERE
Available-for-sale financial assets Al it & 7 BTS B

37 MR Y
M

371 MBREERAEZER(E)

(ivy BEAFEIEZSE
THE(E)
AR R e R /N
B ECWBEETE
DENAT Z A FEZRE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E $2[E $3[E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
BEgTT BE¥ETT BT BE¥Tn

4,896 - - 4,896
18,129 - - 18,129

As 31 December 2014 RZE-MFE+=-A=1+—H
Financial assets at fair value BATEFIR RN ER
through profit or loss EHREHBEE

Available-for-sale financial assets At & 7 B EE

5,693 = = 5,693
20,924 = = 20,924

There have been no transfers between levels in
the reporting period.

RmEHE - BREZHLEEE -
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

37.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

(Continued)

(iv) Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Continued)
The Group’s financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale financial
assets are listed equity securities denominated
in HK$. Fair values have been determined by
reference to their quoted bid prices at the end of
reporting period.

37.2 Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group’s exposures to currency risk arise
from its deposits placed in banks, which are primarily
denominated in HK$ and RMB as set out in note
23 and 24. The Group have no other significant
foreign currency risk due to limited foreign currency
transactions as the Group mainly operate in Hong
Kong with majority of the business transactions being
denominated and settled in HKS$.

Summary of exposure

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and
liabilities, translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing rates, are as follows:

37.

A5
(%)

w

‘Hfi— ) 4

37.1

R B B A AT

MBEEREEZER(E)

(ivy BEAFEIEZSE
TA(E)
KNEE 2 BN FEYER
MRIBERTERE Y
WEERHTEEMB
BEEANEEBIEZ £
MRAZESR - A FETD
2EZHBESFRBRED
KBz EABMERE °

37.2 HMESE R

INERRIEF ST A2 AFE
SAkREBESTRELRAERSE
mE ez R o 3K 23
R24FTE - AEEZHINER
REFEZREREFHRREBITZ
GFR - EXTBUBEBERARE
FrE - ARAEEXZEES
BIE REMBERFHUE
MAERGEE  BINERZZE
(RSN N E T S =
FEARINERP ©

2 B 1B 2

NS EZHBEERAE
M fE R E BB 21BN
o

2015 2014

—E-HF —=—PO4

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BETT

Pledged bank deposits BIEIFRITIER 118,736 121,212
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITES 104,694 105,203
223,430 226,415




AL (RED) AIRAF « —F—TFEFR 141

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A A W B AR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2015 * #ZE —E—FE+ - H=—+—HIFFF

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. BAWSE B B R N R =
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%)
(CONTINUED)
37.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued) 37.2 IMEEREBs ()
Sensitivity analysis BRBRED N

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group’s result and equity in regards to a 2.5% (2014:
2.5%) appreciation in the foreign currencies against
the Group entities’ functional currencies. The 2.5%
(2014: 2.5%) is the rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s best assessment of the
possible change in foreign exchange rates.

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting
period has been determined based on the assumed
percentage changes in foreign currency exchange rates
taking place at the beginning of the financial year and
held constant throughout the year.

2.5% (2014: 2.5%) AREFE2.5%

appreciation in RMB

—ET—F :2.5%)

TEREMANEBMEEREST
SNES A EEEREINEEE A
BE2.5%(—ZF—M4%F : 2.5%)2
BURKE - 2.5%( - % — EE:
25%) REBERNBRAEEE

;-&i&&l\liﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz
b WAEIEE NS E X
ATRE E) 2 S AE(ARTLLE o

NEBRBEHREASZ ZINE

[B B 2 SRRKE 5 AT Th AR 15 7R B

BEERBBECELARRER

—Ef%h,ZQI\?ﬁ%EI{E“““EJJ
DEEE °

2015
—E-ffF
HK$’000
BETT

5,586 5,660

A 2.5% (2014: 2.5%) depreciation in the foreign
currencies against the group entities’ functional
currencies would have the same magnitude on the
Group’s result for the year and equity but of opposite
effect.

INEHEEERNKEEREE
25% (= —WF : 2.5%) ¥
HAEBEARFEXEMERT
REREBERAMERZFE -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

37.3

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings
arranged in floating interest rates. The Group currently
does not have any interest rate hedging policy.
However, the directors monitor interest rate change
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate change exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s loss/profit
for the year and equity (through the impact on floating
rate bank borrowings).

Increase in basis points (“bp”)
+ 100 bp

37.

ZL2E([Z2E )38 IN+1002 20

SRS JEL g 7 B R s PHE R

(

Jes

NE

)

37.3 FEE

MERREBRDEREHTAZA
FEFREREGEDHH X
EEmKE AR - AKET
EHZMNEESmERAREER
BT AEEAFBN LR
TEE - AEBEBRKHETM
MEREIPHE - A - EFE
KNEBHIFER - KSR B
BEEZREPEAMN R -

TRINTRATHE H b & BRI
AN AR IR A IR ] B
BERAT  AKREZAFEE
1B/ F R (BB X 8T
RIRTREZRE ) HEH I
RN o

2015
—E-HE
HK$’000
B¥TT

2,474 2,495

A decrease in 100 bp in the interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have the same
magnitude on the Group’s result for the year and equity
but of opposite effect.

=R 100 EL B i EL A B2 2R
FAE SHAKELAFREZ
RERESTRARREEER
AARZEE -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. BAFSk
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%8)
(CONTINUED)

37.4 Equity price risk

JR g A P K e R R

37.4 REEHRER

Equity price risk relates to the risk that the fair values
of equity securities decrease as a result of changes in
the level of equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to change in market
prices of listed equity securities in respect of its
investments in listed equity securities classified as
available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at
fair value through profit and loss.

The directors manage this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk and return
profiles and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise. The Group is not exposed to
commodity price risk.

At 31 December 2015, if the quoted market price for
the available-for-sale investments had been 10% (2014:
10%) higher/lower while all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s equity will increase/decrease by
approximately HK$1,813,000 (2014: HK$2,092,000).

Whereas, if the quoted market price for listed equity
securities classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss had been 10% (2014: 10%)
higher with all other variables remain unchanged, the
Group’s loss (2014: profit) for the year would decrease
by HK$490,000 (2014: increase by HK$569,000)
whereas the Group’s retained profits would increase
by the same amount. A 10% (2014: 10%) lower in the
quoted market price for listed equity securities classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit and loss,
with all other variables held constant, would have the
same magnitude on the Group’s result for the year and
equity but of opposite effect.

IR EERR TR AR AE
Z A EREBREEZRKE & E
E‘Jm%{“ﬁﬁ‘*‘@iﬁﬂﬁQ‘Z@
c ARERERE EHRAE
#(ﬁiﬁﬁ—fﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬂxﬁﬁ
KR EINKRERBRET
BRI B EE) - Eﬁ(ﬁﬂim
P8 7 (B 2 B AL

EFRFTRAR REHEK
WEAE  NEBELRR I
H#EA%EH%%J%¥T5¢ﬁF%ﬂ

c AL EMEEE R MER
HM

R_ZE—AF+_A=+—
B BuafHEREMBRZ
mELEH TBR10%(=ZF—MN
F 1 10%) * MATA E & s
BRE - BIAREEERSEE
o A 49 78 #1,813,000 7T
— T P4 B 2,092,000
JT) °

%ﬁ'ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ$@ﬂ
FREGRFER BB
éFZLm AR EE TSR
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T—WF HEAM) R BE
490,0007C (=& — U4 : #hn
B #569,0007T) * MALEZ
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

37.5 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The Group
minimises its exposure to the credit risk by rigorously
selecting the counterparties, performing ongoing
credit evaluation on the financial conditions of its
debtors and tightly monitoring the ageing of the
receivables. Follow-up actions are taken in case of
overdue balances. In particular for granting loans
to customers, the directors will initially assess the
background and financial position of each of the new
and existing customers and will request for collateral
when necessary in order to minimise credit risk. The
directors will also review regularly the repayment
pattern of the customers. Monitoring on credit risk of
loans receivable is performed by the directors on on-
going basis. In addition, management reviews the
recoverable amount of the trade and other receivables
and loans receivable individually or collectively at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
At the end of reporting period, the Group holds listed
equity securities with market value of HK$17,763,000
(2014: HK$11,240,000) as collateral over the balance
of margin receivables. In addition, a loan receivable
amounting to HK$1,000,000 as at 31 December 2014
was secured by a property located in Hong Kong (note
18). Other than the above, the Group does not hold
any collateral over the loans and receivables at the end
of reporting period. At the end of reporting period, the
Group has certain concentration risk as HK$38,400,000
or 96% (2014: HK$29,600,000 or 92%) of the Group’s
loans receivable are due from two borrowers.

37.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

37.5

37.6

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The credit policy has been followed by the Group since
prior years and is considered to have been effective
in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a
desirable level.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities. In the management of liquidity
risk, the directors monitor and maintain a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate to finance
the Group’s operations, investment opportunities and
expected expansion. The Group finances its working
capital requirements mainly by the funds generated
from operations and investing activities and from fund
raising activities such as rights issue.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. PR bR P A E R
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%)
(CONTINUED)

37.6 RBELEMR(E)
RBEHRKR AEBEREL
FUARBEEREZHEEET
HEFRE R T ¢

37.6 Liquidity risk (Continued)
At the end of reporting period, the maturity profile of
the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows is as follows:

At 31 December 2015 RZE-1%+-A=1-A
Trade and other payables B REMERER - 25,111 - - 25,711 25,171
Bank borrowings including ROEE(DESBREL
those contain a repayment BRERZHOEER)
on demand clause (note) (BtE) 247,351 - - - 247,351 247,351
Obligations under finance leases B 1A% - 230 385 - 615 541
247,351 26,001 385 - 213,737 273,663
At 31 December 2014 RZE-F
T-A=t-H
Trade and other payables EEREMERER - 23,012 - - 23,012 23,012
Bank horrowings including RORE(REIERER
those contain a repayment BREEZZHOES)
on demand clause (note) (FtzE) 249,481 - - - 249,481 249,481
Obligations under finance leases ~ BATR#)&E - 136 101 - 237 211
249,481 23,148 101 - 272,730 212,704
Note: f5E -
For term loans which contain a repayment on demand clause which can HREHERTAIZENBETEZREK
be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis above shows EEBERZEHER Loz ER
the cash outflow based on the earliest period in which the entity can be AIEEB B R BRI (B E F 1T
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional HEGGRENERARERER) 23R

HD

Iﬂ\ﬂl

rights to call the loans with immediate effect. & ik
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

37.6 Liquidity risk (Continued)

37. W5\ A B K AT (E R

(%)

37.6 REBELEM(E)

The table that follows summaries the maturity analysis
of term loans with a repayment on demand clause
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in
the loan agreements. The amounts include interest
payments computed using contractual rates. As a
result, these amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the maturity
analysis above. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors do not consider that it
is probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe
that such term loans will be repaid in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

31 December 2015 ZE-RETZR=1-A

203,450

47,945

TR B I B i SRR R
ZEHERZERBRETZ
RTERAHZEHEIN -
ZETHEREBEANNEGFE
ZHREMK - ALt - HEFLHE
BREMBIEIRE DM [HRER
EEINAEEAREZ 2
RE e BERAREZ BN
N BEERB/RITIAAIETT
FEHBMIBSRERNEER - &
EHE%XFEHERBRERK
WhEE R EE R A HIMEE -

3,107 254,502 247,351

31 December 2014 “3-MEF-A=1-H

177,962

50,733

33,000 261,700 249,481
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

(a) to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns and
benefits for shareholders and other stakeholders;

(b) to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(c) to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group. The Group currently does not
adopt any formal dividend policy.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements except for a subsidiary engaged in securities
trading and broking services, which is regulated entity under
the Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) and subject
to the respective minimum liquid capital requirement HK$3
million as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

During the year, the subsidiary of the Group, which are
regulated by the SFC, complied with all the minimum capital
requirement.

Management regards total equity as capital for capital
management purpose. The amount of capital as at 31
December 2015 amounted to approximately HK$381,079,000
(2014: HK$399,285,000), which the management considers
as satisfactory having considered the projected capital
expenditures and the forecast strategic investment
opportunities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2015 ¢ #ZE - E—f#F - H=1+—HIFFE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
On 16 November 2015, the Group entered into a conditional
sales and purchases agreement (“Agreement”) with an
independent third party, Po Lee Capital Limited (“Purchaser”).
According to the Agreement, the Group agreed to sell the
entire issued share capital of Century Legend Securities
Limited (“CL Securities”) (the “Disposal”) subject to the terms
and conditions stated in the Agreement.

The Disposal has not yet been completed as at 31 December
2015. The major conditions as stipulated in the Agreement
were subsequently fulfilled on 9 March 2016, and the
management considers that the Disposal would be completed
and scheduled on 23 March 2016. Upon completion of
the Disposal, CL Securities ceases to be a subsidiary of
the Company. The consideration of the Disposal which is
subject to adjustment, is estimated to be approximately
HK$24,000,000, resulting in estimated gain on disposal of
approximately HK$6,000,000.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
HRCEE S

A summary of the results, and the assets and liabilities of the Group U TFTAXREBERNBERESABEE Z¥£48E -
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published XBENBEME @ IHEEC T3 2 K8E%
audited financial statements, is set out below. This summary does not  Bf iR % - A BN MK S BB HE
form part of the audited financial statements. 231 .

Results 3y

2015
ZE-HEF

HK$’000
BETT

Revenue A 27,456 28,647 30,721 32,115 34,065
Profit/(Loss) for the year FERA/(BE) 10,245 11,789 16,938 15,109 (18,443)
Assets and Liabilities EERER

2015
—E-0fF
HK$’000
BET T

Total assets BEE 429,474 439,644 622,400 674,990 658,148
Total liabilities FEN=E (82,870) (76,701)  (240,479)  (275,705)  (277,069)

Shareholders’ funds MR E & 346,604 362,943 381,921 399,285 381,079
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Investment Properties WREYEFES
Percentage
of interest
attributable
Description Use Nature Gross floor to the Group
REE M
E3 JizE=s HE EEME ERED
Res-do-chao K Commercial Medium term 349 sq.ft. 100%
San Kin Yip Com. Center, leasehold
No. 44,
Avenida de Lopo Sarmento de Carvalho,
EM Macau,
Macau
RPIE B A S B44F TR E P UK [ RHIHE 349F /R 100%
P12-07, P12-08, P12-09 and P12-10B Commercial Medium term 8,110 sq.ft. 100%
Landmark, Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Assumpcao leasehold
NoS 565-605-C,
Rua De Xangai NoS 38-78-B,
Avenida da Amizade NoS 519-597,
Macau
RPIRFAKNFEES19-5975% [EES RHIHE 8,110 AR 100%
E§%#%38-78-B5
RE A4 EIHF565-605-C5
SRPIE H EHP12-07 ~ P12-08 »
P12-09 2 P12-10B
Nos. 105-107 Wing Lok Street, Commercial Long term 13,599 sq.ft. 100%

Sheung Wan (Mingle Place), leasehold

and the remaining Portion of Marine Lot

Nos. 135 and 136

ERKEE105- 107K (BEE) & EES REHE 13,599F 77 R 100%
TS HER 135 R 1365R B R

Flat H, 20/F, Residential Long term 691 sq.ft. 100%
Heng Shan Mansion, leasehold

Kao Shan Terrace,

No. 19 Taikoo Shing Road,

Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,

Hong Kong

778 8 F2UR K *=E RHEIHEE 691 IR 100%
AEHBE195%

= A E L R

20BH=
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BOE W) R

Flat E, 27/F, Residential Long term 1,029 sq.ft. 100%
Pine Mansion, leasehold

Harbour View Gardens,

No. 26 Taikoo Wan Road,

Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,

Hong Kong

BEBRRBA T F=E REIEE 1,029 15 IR 100%
AN 82655

BREESTIRE

2TIEEE

Flat B, 10/F, Residential Long term 902 sq.ft. 100%
Kai Tien Mansion, leasehold

Horizon Gardens,

No. 17 Taikoo Wan Road,

Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,

Hong Kong

BB RBATN F=E RAEE 902F 15 R 100%
RN EBI75%

B RAE B RUR B

101EB=E

Flat F, 23/F, Residential Long term 675 sq.ft. 100%
Loong Shan Mansion, leasehold

Kao Shan Terrace,

No. 21 Taikoo Shing Road,

Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,

Hong Kong

EBBI OB S T= REAMEE 675 F R 100%
AN iE215%

=L AaELRE

231BFE
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